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Shinagawa Intercity Tower-A, 2-15-1 Konan, 2 /
Minato-ku, Tokyo108-6024
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Office of International Corporate Finance
Securities and Exchange Commission

June 18, 2003

450 Fifth Street, N.-W.
Washington, D.C. 20549
USA. A 8

Dear Mr. Dudek:

We, Japan Airlines System Corporation, a 12g3-2(b) exemptee, File No. 82-122, would like to
submit the following documents to your office in accordance with the requirements of its exemption
from registration.

Notice of Convening of 1st Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. (June 9, 2003) English
Notice of Convening of 1st Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. (June 9, 2003) Japanese

Financial Documents for the 1* Term (from October 2, 2002 to March 31, 2003). English
Financial Documents for the 1% Term (from October 2, 2002 to March 31, 2003). ] apanese

bl e

These documents are enclosed with this letter. Please indicate the date of receipt of these
documents by either facsimile or by email mentioned below.
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Thank you very much in advance. PRQCESS&@
Yours sincerely, <~ JuL 11 2003

Katsumasa Tomizawa

Investor Relations

{ Q 3 O Japan Airlines System Corporation

Tel.: 81-3-5769-6462
Fax: 81-3-5769-6492
katsumasa.tomizawa@jal.com
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June 9, 2003

To All Shareholders

Re: Notice of Convening of 1st Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Dear shareholder:

This is to inform you that the Ist annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held
according to the schedule ndicated below. In this regard, we request your attendance at this meeting.

If you are unable to attend the meeting on that day, you will still be able to exercise your voting rights by
written proxy. In such case, please refer to the following reference document and return the enclosed
form for exercising voting rights by proxy after indicating your approval or disapproval and affixing your
official seal or signature.

1. Date and Time: June 26, 2003 (Thursday), 10:00 AM
Location: Hotel New Otani, Main Bidg. 1F “Tsurunoma Room,”
4-1 Kiotcho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

3. Contents of the Meeting

Reports: Reporting of the balance sheet for the period ending on March 31, 2003 along with reporting
of the business report and profit and loss statement for the 1st term (from October 2, 2002 to
March 31, 2003)

Resolutions:

Item 1: Approval of proposed appropriation of retained earnings for the 1st term

Item 2: Partial alteration of the articles of incorporation. A summary of the proposed resolutions is
described in the following Reference Document for Exercising Voting Rights” (page 2 to 6).

Item 3: Election of 15 directors

Item 4: Election of 6 auditors

Item 5: Presentation of retirement gratuity for outgoing directors

Very truly yours,

Isao Kaneko

President & CEQ, Japan Airlines System Corporation
15-1, Konan 2-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

When you attend the meeting, please submit the enclosed form for exercising voting rights to the
receptionist at the meeting site.



Reference Document for Exercising Voting Rights
1. Total shareholder voting rights: 1,927,821
2. Proposed resolutions and reference matters

Proposed Resolution No.1: Approval of Proposed Appropriation of Retained Earnings for the First
Term

Details of proposed appropriation of retained earnings are as stated on page 17 of the attached Report for
the First Term. '

During the current term, both consolidated sales and ordinary profits went below the initial projections due
to the situation in Iraq and other factors, but taking into consideration medium-term prospects of revenue
and expenditure as well as the importance of dividends and other factors, we will pay a common dividend
of four yen per share for the term.

Proposed Resolution No. 2: Alteration of Part of the Articles of Incorporation

1. List of the proposed resolution and the reason for alteration

(1) With the enforcement of the Law Concerning Partial Amendment to the Commercial Code and the
Law for the Special Provisions of the Commercial Code for the Audit of Stock Companies, etc. (Law
No. 149 of 2001) on May 1, 2002, stock companies are now allowed to establish regulations for
lightening the liabilities of their Directors and Statutory Auditors. Therefore, this resolution proposes
to establishment new regulations to release Directors and Statutory Auditors from certain liabilities
within the scope stipulated by law (new Articles 21.1 and 27). Stock companies are also allowed to
conclude contracts with their outside Directors for limiting their liabilities, and therefore, this
resolution also proposes to establish a new necessary regulation {(new Article 21.2). With respect to
the submission of this proposed resolution to the forthcoming General Assembly of Shareholders,
unanimous approval by the Board of Statutory Auditors has been obtained.

(2) With the enforcement of the Law Concerning Partial Amendment to the Commercial Code, etc. (Law
No. 44 of 2002) on April 1, 2003, stock companies are now allowed to relax the quorum for special
resolutions at the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Article 343 of the Commercial
Code by including a new regulation to that effect in their article of incorporation. Therefore, in order
to ensure more flexible deliberations for matters related to special resolutions, the resolution proposes
to establish a new necessary regulation (new Article 14.2).

With the creation of the stock certificate invalidation system, the resolution also proposes to make
necessary alterations to Article 7 (Shares Handling Regulations) and Paragraph 3 of Article 10
(Transfer Agent) of the current Articles of Incorporation.

(3) If the bill for the Law Conceming Partial Amendment to the Civil Aeronautics Law, which is currently
being considered, is promulgated and enforced as proposed, the percentage of foreign and other
shareholders to total shareholder voting rights for the holding company of air transport operators in
Japan will be limited. In this backdrop, the resolution proposes to establish a new necessary
regulation (new Article 7) in this respect.

It will be stipulated in the Supplementary Provisions that the new regulation will take effect on the date
of enforcement for the said law.

(4) In order to build an integrated operation system for the JAL group through functional office

arrangement, plans call for the group’s head office functions to be concentrated in the JAL Building
where Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. is currently located. Accordingly, the resolution proposes to alter the
provision of Article 3 of the current Articles of Incorporation so as to read as follows: The head office
shall be located in Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo.
It is planned that the head office will be relocated to the JAL Building in the second half of fiscal 2003,
and the change of the location of the head office will take effect on the date of actual relocation with
the decision on the specific date of relocation left to the Board of Directors. The provision to that
effect will be included in the Supplementary Provisions.



(5) Article 1 (Shares to Be Issued upon the Incorporation by Transfer of Shares), Article 2 (First Fiscal

Year) and Article 3 (First Term of Office for Statutory Auditors) of the Supplementary Provisions for
the current Articles of Incorporation stipulate the necessary matters for the establishment of the
Company and will become unnecessary upon the termination of the forthcoming General Meeting of
Shareholders. Therefore, the resolution proposes to delete these Articles.
Article 4 (Request for Purchase of Additional Shares) of the Supplementary Provisions for the current
Articles of Incorporation provides for the date when the change of requests for purchase of additional
shares takes effect, and the date has already been passed. Therefore, the resolution proposes to delete
this Article.

(6) In addition, the resolution proposes to change the article numbers according to the establishment of
new provisions.

2. Details of alterations
Details of alterations are as specified below (underlined are the altered portions):
Proposed alterations

Current Articles of Incorporation Alteration
(Location of Head Office) (Location of Head Office)
Article 3. The Company shall have its head Article 3. The Company shall have its head
office in Minato-ku, Tokyo. office in Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo.
(Newly added) (Limitation _on Inclusion of Foreigners and

Other Persons in Register of Shareholders and
Register of Beneficial Shareholders)

Article 7. If the Company receives from a
person who falls into one of the categories
listed in the items below a request for inclusion
of their name and address in the register of
shareholders and the register of beneficial
shareholders and if its acceptance of such a
request causes the total voting rights owned by
persons who fall into one of the categories
listed in the items below to represent one-third
of the total voting rights for the Company or
more, the Company shall refuse such inclusion.
(1) Person _who does not have Japanese

citizenship
(2) Foreign country, foreign public_body or

(3) Corporation __or ___other __organization
established under _foreign laws _ and

regulations
(Shares Handling Regulations) (Shares Handling Regulations)
Article 7. All handling procedures for shares Article 8. All handling procedures for shares
and rights for subscription of new shares, and rights for subscription of new shares,

including, but not limited to, exercise of voting | including, but not limited to, exercise of voting
rights or other shareholder’s rights by electronic { rights or other shareholder’s rights by electronic




means, types of share certificates, registration
of transfer of share ownership and rights for
subscription of new shares on the register of
shareholders, entry and record of the transfer on
the register of beneficial shareholders, purchase
by the Company of its shares falling short of
one unit, registration of pledges of shares of the
Company and cancellation of such registration,
issuance of replacement share certificates,
registration and indication of trust of fiduciary
interest in shares and rights for subscription of
new shares of the Company and cancellation
thereof, and fees chargeable by the Company
therefor, shall be governed by these Articles of
Incorporation and the Shares Handling
Regulations adopted by the Board of Directors.

means, types of share certificates, registration
of transfer of share ownership and rights for
subscription of new shares on the register of
shareholders, entry and record of the transfer on
the register of beneficial shareholders and the
register of lost share certificates, purchase by
the Company of its shares falling short of one
unit, registration of pledges of shares of the
Company and cancellation of such registration,
issuance of replacement share certificates,
registration and indication of trust of fiduciary
interest in shares and rights for subscription of
new shares of the Company and canc ellation
thereof, and fees chargeable by the Company
therefor, shall be governed by these Articles of
Incorporation and the Shares Handling
Regulations adopted by the Board of Directors.

Article 8. (Provisions omitted)

Article 9. (Same as the current provision)

(Record Data)

Article 9. Only the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear or are recorded
in the register of shareholders or the register of
beneficial shareholders as of the 31st day of
March of any year shall be entitled to exercise
their voting rights at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders to be held in that year.
2. In addition to the cases referred to in Section
9.1 and Article 26 hereof, the Company may, as
and when authorized to do so by a resolution of
the Board of Directors, fix a record date to
determine the shareholders or their pledgees
who are entitled to exercise any right as such,
upon giving appropriate prior public notice.

(Record Data)
Article 10. (Same as the current provision)

2. In addition to the cases referred to in Section
9.1 and Article 29 hereof, the Company may, as
and when authorized to do so by a resolution of
the Board of Directors, fix a record date to
determine the shareholders or their pledgees
who are entitled to exercise any right as such,
upon giving appropriate prior public notice.2.

(Transfer Agent)

Article 10. The Company shall have a share
transfer agent for its shares

2. Such share transfer agent and its place of the
handling business shall be selected by
resolution of the Board of Directors and public
notice thereof shall be given in due course.

3. The register of shareholders, the register of
beneficial shareholders and the register of the
rights for subscription of new shares of the
Company shall be kept at the place of the
handling business of the transfer agent, and the
registration of transfers of shares and rights for
subscription of new shares, and the purchase of
shares constituting less than one unit and other
matters concerning shares and rights for
subscription of new shares shall be handled by
the transfer agent and not by the Company.

(Transfer Agent)
Article 11. (Same as the current provision)

2. (Same as the current provision)

3. The register of shareholders, the register of
beneficial shareholders, the register of the rights
for subscription of new shares of the Company
and the register of lost share certificates shall be
kept at the place of the handling business of the
transfer agent, and the registration of transfers
of shares and rights for subscription of new
shares, entry into or record in the register of Jost
share certificates, and the purchase of shares
constituting less than one unit and other matters
concerning shares and rights for subscription of
new shares shall be handled by the transfer
agent and not by the Company.

Articles 11 and 12 ((Provisions omitted)

Articles 12 and 13 (Same as the current




provision)

(Resolutions of Shareholders)

Article 13. Except as otherwise provided by law
or by these Articles of Incorporation, all
resolutions at a General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be adopted by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the voting
rights owned by shareholders represented at the
meeting.

{(Newly added)

(Resolutions of Shareholders)

Article 14. Except as otherwise provided by law
or by these Articles of Incorporation, all
resolutions at a General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be adopted by the

affirmative vote of a majority of the voting
rights owned by shareholders represented at the
meeting.

2. Resolutions that should be adopted in
accordance with the provision of Article 343 of
the Commercial Code shall be adopted by a
majority of two-thirds of the voting rights of
shareholders who have one-third of the total
shareholder voting rights or more and are
represented at the meeting.

Articles 14 to 19 (Provisions omitted)

Articles 15 to 20 (Same as the current
provision)

(Newly added)

(Exemption of Directors from Liabilities)
Article 21. In accordance with the provision of
Article 266.12 of the Commercial Code, the
Company, by means of a resolution by the
Board of Directors, may exempt its Directors
(including those who were Directors) from
liabilities for acts specified in Article 266.1.5
within the limit stipulated by law.

2. In accordance with the provision of Article
266.19 of the Commercial Code, the Company
may conclude contracts with its outside
Directors to  limit  their _ liabilities  for
compensation for damage arising from acts
specified in Article 266.1.5. The limit to
damages paid in accordance with the contracts,
however, shall be as provided by law.

Article 20 (Provisions omitted)

Article 22 (Same as the current provision)

(Election of Statutory Auditors)

Article 21. The provisions of Article 16.1 shall
apply mutatis mutandis 1o the election of
Statutory Auditors.

(Election of Statutory Auditors)

Article 23. The provision of Article 17.1 shall
apply mutatis mutandis to the election of
Statutory Auditors.

Articles 22 to 24 (Provisions omitted)

Articles 24 to 26 (Same as the current
provision)

(Newly added)

(Exemption of Statutory Auditors from

Liabilities)

Article 27. In accordance with the provision of
Article 266.12 of the Commercial Code to
which Article 280.]1 of the Code is applied
mutatis mutandis, the Company, by means of a
resolution by the Board of Directors, may
exempt its Statutory Auditors (including those
who were Statutory Auditors) from liabilities
within the limit stipulated by law.

Articles 25 to 27 (Provisions omitted)

Articles 28 to 30 (Same as the current
provision)

Supplementary Provisions

Supplementary Provisions




{Shares to Be Issued wpon the Incorporation by
Transfer of Shares)

Article 1. The Company shall be incorporated
pursuant to Article 364 (Transfer of Shares) of
the Commercial Code.

2. The total number of shares to be issued upon
the incorporation of the Company shall be the
aggregate number of 1,980,465,250 ordinary
shares and the same number of ordinary shares
as issued upon conversion, between April 1,
2002 and the day immediately preceding the
date of the transfer of shares, of convertible
bonds issued by JAPAN AIRLINES
COMPANY LTD.

(Deleted)

(First Fiscal Year)

Article 2. The first fiscal year of the Company
shall be from the date of the incorporation of
the Company to the 31st day of March 2003.

(Deleted)

(First Term of Office of Statutory Auditors)
Article 3. Notwithstanding Article 22, the first
term of office of a Statutory Auditor shall
expire upon the closing of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the last fiscal year
ending within one (1) year after his assumption
of the position of statutory auditor.

{Deleted)

(Purchase Request)

Article 4. The revisions of the Aricles of
Incorporation (Article 6 Paragraph 3, Article 7
and Article 10 Paragraph 3) related to purchase
requests by shareholders who hold the
Company’s shares falling short of one unit shall
take effect on April 1, 2003.

(Deleted)

(Newly added)

(Relocation of Head Office)

Article 1. The change of the location of the
Company’s head office (Article 3) shall take
effect on the date of relocation decided by the
meeting of the Board of Directors, which will
be held by the last day of March 2004.

(Newly added)

(Limitation of Inclusion of Foreigners and
Other Persons in _Company’s Register of
Shareholders and  That of  Beneficial
Shareholders)

Article 2. The additional provision concerning
the limitation of inclusion of foreigners and
other persons in the register of shareholders and
the register of beneficial shareholders (Article
7) shall take effect from the day when the Law
Concerning Partial Amendment to the Civil
Aeronautics Law  (allowing the holding
companies of air transport operators in Japan to
limit the content of the newly added Article 7 of
the Articles of Incorporation) is enforced.




Proposed Resolution No. 3: Election of 15 directors

Since the term of the currently serving 15 directors will have expired as of the conclusion of the general

meeting of shareholders, shareholders are requested to elect 15 directors for the coming fiscal year.

The candidates for the position of director are as indicated below.

Candi- « ) No. of Prgseqce of
date Name (date of birth) Background and represenFatlon status at other shéma,s of the Spec,.al interest
no. companies ompany in the

held Company
April 1960 Joined JAL
June 1991 Director
June 1995 Managing Director
Isao KANEKO June 1997 Senior Managing Director
1 (Born on March 1, June 1998 President 25,407 None
1938) October 2002  President & CEO, JALS (currently
serving)
April 2003 Chairman, JAL (currently serving)
April 1965 Joined JAL
June 1997 Director
Toshiyuki SHINMACHI :pr?ll 588? é“a?’agﬁg Director’ 1
) (Born on January 20, pri enior Managing Director (currently] 17,000 None
1943) serving) o
October 2002  Senior Managing Director, JALS
(currently serving)
Takenori April 1968 quned Ministry of Transport
MATSUMOTO June 2000 Dlrectqr, JAS
3 June 2001 Managing Director (currently 3,600 None
(Born on February 5, serving)
1944)
April 1968 Joined JAL
June 1998 Director
April 2001 Managing Director (currently
Hidekazu NISHIZUKA serving)
4 (Born on January 29, |October 2002  Managing Director, JALS (currently| 14,081 None
1946) serving)
[Representation status at other companies]
President, Saga Airport Refueling Deposit Co., Ltd.
April 1966 Joined Japan Domestic Airlines
Co.,Ltd
May 1997 Deputy General Manager, Corporate
Fumitaka KURIHARA Planning, JAS
(Born on January 3, |June 1999 Operating Officer & General
> 1943) Manager, Corporate Planning 4,600 None
June 2001 Director
October 2002  Managing Director, JALS (currently
serving)
Gentaro MARUYAMA | July 1971 Joined JAL
6 (Born on October 12, {June 1997 General Manager, Accounting 6,000 None
1946) April 1999 Operating Officer




June 2000
October 2002

Director
Managing Director, JALS (currently
serving)

[Representation status at other companies]
President, JAL LIVRE Co., Ltd.

President, JAL Capital Co., Ltd.

President, ALIVE INSURANCE PTE., LTD.
President, TRIPLE A LIMITED

April 1965 Joined Toa Airways Co.,Ltd
May 1997 Deputy General Manager, Sales
Div, JAS
June 1999 Vice President, Harlequin Air
Nobuyoshi SERA Corporation
(Born on February 9, |March 2000 General Manager, Planning office,
7 1942) Marketing Div_, JAS 5500 | None
May 2001 General Manager, Accounting
June 2001 Operating Officer & General
Manager, Accounting
October 2002  Director, JALS (currently serving)
April 1970 Joined JAL
December 1995 General Manager, Legal Affairs
Susumu MIYOSHI | April 2001 Operating Officer (currently
8 | (Bom on April 4, 1946) serving) 6,782 None
October 2002 Director, JALS (currently serving)
April 1960 Joined Kita-Nihon Airlines Co., Ltd
June 1987 Director, Toa Domestic Airlines
Co.,Ltd
June 1991 Managing Director, JAS
Minoru MORIKAWA |June 1993 Senior Managing Director
9 (Born on February 5, |June 1997 Vice President 13,654 None
1936) June 2001 Executive Vice President (currently
serving)
October 2002  Vice President, JALS (currently
serving)
April 1965 Joined JAL
June 1995 Director
Katsuo HANEDA Junc? 1999 Mapaging Dirgctor '
10 (Born on January 23, April 2001 ngor Mgnagmg Director 41,040 None
1943) June 2002 V{ce president ’ .
October 2002  Director, JALS {currently serving)
April 2003 President, JAL (currently serving)
April 1965 Joined JAL
June 1997 Director
. April 2000 Managing Director
11 (B;ﬁ(iih}m%lﬂfgaz) April 2001 Senior Managing Director 12,155 None
’ June 2002 Vice President (currently serving)
October 2002  Director, JALS (currently serving)
Toshiki OKAZAKI | April 1965 Joined JAL
12 (Born on August 22, |June 1997 Director 12,615 None




1941)

April 2000
June 2001
June 2002°

(October 4, 2002 The company's name has been

April 2000 Managing Director
President, JAA

President, JAL Sales Network Co.,
Ltd. {currently serving)

changed to JAL Sales)
June 1990 President, Tokio Marine and Fire
Insurance Co., Ltd.
June 1996 Chairman
June 1997 Director, JAL
Shunji KONO (Scheduled to retire on June 26,'2003) . _
13 (Born on August 1, June 2001 Adpviser, Tokl_o Marine and Fire 2,000 None
1927) (cprrently serving) .
October 2002  Director, JALS (currently serving)
[Representation status at other companies]
Representative Director, Shinko Building Co., Ltd.
August 1986 Chairman, Chichibu Cement Co.,
Lid.
October 1994  Chairman, Chichibu Onoda Cement
Corporation
June 1996 Senior Adviser
October 1998  Senior Adviser, TAIHEIYO
Ken MORO :
14 (Bomnon gpril I23 CEMENT CORPORATION 0 None
1928) > |June 1999 Director, JAL (Scheduled to retire
on June 26, 2003)
June 2000 Adviser, TAIHETYO CEMENT
CORPORATION (currently
serving)
October 2002  Director, JALS (currently serving)
June 1981 Director, Tokyu Corp.
June 1985 Managing Director
December 1987 Senior Managing Director
April 1995 President
Shinobu SHIMIZU ;une 1997 Dirgctor, JAS (currently serving)
15 (Born on February 3, une 2001 Chax.rman, Tokyu Corp. (currently 0 None
1931) serving) .
October 2002  Director, JALS (currently serving)

[Representation status at other companies]
President, Three hundred Club Co., Ltd.
President, Tokyu Bunkamura, Inc.

Shunji Kohno, Ken Moroiand Shinobu Shimizu satisfy the requirements for outside directors as stipulated
in Article 188, Paragraph 2, Item 7-2 of the Commercial Code.




Proposed Resolution No. 4: Election of 6 auditors

Since the term of the currently serving 6 auditors will have expired as of the conclusion of the general
meeting of shareholders, shareholders are requested to elect 6 auditors for the coming fiscal year.

Approval of the board of auditors was made in advance of this proposed resolution.

The candidates for the position of auditors are as indicated below.

Candi- Back 4 and ) " No. of Presenc.:e of
date | Name (date of birth) ackground and representation status at other shares of the|  special
companies Company |interest in the
no- held Company
April 1965 Joined JAL
June 1997 Deputy General Manager, Related
Industries Office
1 Y‘(‘;‘;&ag: Ji Eﬁ?%g“ June 1999 Standing Auditor 23,450 None
’ October 2002  Standing Auditor, JALS & Auditor,
JAL (currently serving)
April 1963 Joined Kita-Nihon Airlines Co.,Ltd.
June 1997 Director, JAS
2 Toshiyuki SAKAT  [June 2001 Managing Director 5400 None
(Born on September 6, 1940){ October 2002  Standing Auditor, JALS & Audtor, )
JAS (currently serving)
April 1967 Joined JAL
June 1997 Regional Manager, Singapore
June 1999 Managing Director, JAL Leasing
Co., Ltd.
March 2000 President
Shigeo MATSUI April 2000 Senior Managing Director, JAL
3 (BOI'ngon July 15, 1944) P Group Finanfe éo., Ltd. 4000 None
March 2001 Director, JAL Leasing Co., Ltd.
June 2001 Standing Auditor, JAL
October 2002  Standing Auditor, JALS & Auditor,
JAL (currently serving)
April 1966 Joined JAL
June 1997 Vice President, Aircraft Systems
Maintenance Center
April 2000 Adviser, Japan Asia Airways Co.,
Seiso NEO Ltd.
* | (Bomon March 8, 1944) | June 2000 Director 13812 ) None
June 2001 Standing Auditor, JAL (currently
serving)
October 2002 Auditor, JALS (currently serving)
November 1991 President, The Kansai Electric
Power Co., Inc.
Yoshihisa AKIYAMA |May 1997 Vice Chairman, Kansai Economic
5 (Born on September 10, Federation 0 None
1931) June 1998 Auditor, JAL
{Scheduled to retire on June 26, 2003)
May 1999 Chairman, Kansai Economic

10




Federation (currently serving)
June 1999 Chairman, The Kansai Electric
Power Co., Inc. (currently serving)
June 1999 Chairman, Keihanna Co., Ltd.
(currently serving)
October 2002  Auditor, JALS (currently serving)

June 1993 Vice President, The Industrial Bank
of Japan, Ltd.

June 1996 President

June 2000 Auditor, JAL

Masao NISHIMURA |(Scheduled to retire on June 26, 2003)
6 (Born on November 18, |September 2000 Chairman, MHHD & President, The 0 None
1932) Industrial Bank of Japan, Ltd.

April 2002 Senior Adviser, Mizuho Financial

Group, Inc.

October 2002  Auditor, JALS (currently serving)

Yoshihisa Akiyama and Masao Nishimura are outside auditors as stipulated in Article 18, Paragraph 1
of the Law for the Special Provisions of the Commercial Code for the Audit of Stock Companies, etc.

Proposed Resolution No. 5: Presentation of Retirement Gratuity for Outgoing Directors

In recognition of the meritorious service performed by directors Hiromi Funabiki and Masahide Ochi, who
will resign following completion of their terms at the conclusion of the general meeting of shareholders,
shareholders are requested to entrust the board of directors with the presentation of a retirement gratuity
within the scope of an appropriate amount based on the internal regulations of the Company, along with the
specific amount, the time of presentation, the method of that presentation and so forth.

The backgrounds of the outgoing directors are as indicated below

Name Background

Hiromi FUNABIKI |October 2002 Representative Director, JALS (currently serving)

Masahide OCHI October 2002  Vice President, JALS (currently serving)

11
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Business Report (From October 2, 2002 to March 31, 2003)

1. Business Overview

(1) Trends and Results of JAL Group Operation

The nation’s economy during the current term remained severe with the future of the world’s economy
being unpredictable, employment and personal income statistics being bleak, and personal spending
remaining low, although there were signs of recovery seen in some corporate income data.

Given this backdrop, Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred to as JAL) and Japan Air System Co.,
Ltd. (hereafter referred to as JAS) established our Japan Airlines System Corporation (hereafter
referred to as the Company) on October 2, 2002 utilizing the share transfer method, after receiving
approval from shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting in June 2002. Thus, the new JAL Group
was born.

JAL Group aims at maximizing the benefits of the management consolidation and building a robust
corporate infrastructure based on well-balanced international and domestic operations, thereby
becoming the world’s top-class air transportation group. As the specific measures towards that end,
JAL Group, immediately upon establishment, has embarked on the following: an increase in the
number of flights for routes where competitors had been stronger in the past m order to promote
competition, enhance network, and improve efficiency of route operations; elimination o redundant
JAL and JAS routes for more efficient utilization of management resources; and improvement of flight
timetable.

In addition, JAL Group has implemented a number of measures to reap the harvest of the management
consolidation as early as possible. Those measures include:

1) centralization of operations to reorganized passenger sales subsidiaries,

2) merger of subsidiaries that had planned/produced travel products to centralize operations to one

international and one domestic travel company,

3) centralization of operations to reorganized cargo sales subsidiaries,

4) reduction of rent and other expenses by centralizing urban and airport facilities,

5) merger of financial/lease subsidiaries, and

6) separation of the accounting department to create a separate corporate entity.

Moreover, in line with the centralization of operations through the establishment of a partnership in
the mileage program and the centralization of sales organization, we have created our Group brand by
introducing a unified brand (new logo), renewing aircraft exterior design, and introducing a unified
brand name for our package tour products, to maximize our brand power and strengthen our
competitiveness.

Regarding the system integration between JAL and JAS, we are currently carefully preparing for the
implementation of the integrated system m April 2004, with the first priority given to ensuring
reliability for our customers and improving their convenience. We have provided a partial integrated
booking service for the time being and will continue to provide integrated services as soon as they
become available.

As a result of those measures, the Group’s consolidated accounts (of 171 consolidated subsidiaries and
27 equity-method affiliates) have resulted in an annual operating income of ¥2,083,400 million, an
operating profit of ¥10,500 million, an ordinary profit of ¥15,800 million, and a current term profit_of
¥11,600 million.



JAL individualresults show total transported international and domestic passenger and cargo weight
of 12,104,170,000 ton-km and an operating income of ¥1,233,800 million, up 7.0% and 5.5%,
respectively, from the previous term. This has resulted in an operating profit of ¥700 million, an
ordinary profit. of ¥8,300 million, and a current term profit of ¥18,700 million.

JAS unconsolidated results show total transported international and domestic passenger and cargo
weight of 1,414,650,000 ton-km and an operating income of ¥338,100 million, down 2.2% and 6.2%,
respectively, from the previous term. This has resulted in an operating loss of ¥2,300 million, an
ordinary loss of ¥4,600 million, and a current term loss of ¥4,600 million.

In the area of safety of operations, “maintaining aviation safety” remains the first-and foremost
challenge in the Group’s operation. Upon forming the new Group, we have expressed our
commitment to safety in the below-mentioned Safety Charter, and shall strive to ensure aviation
safety.

The status of business activities of the main business companies within JAL Group 1s as follows:

(i) JAL
International Passenger Business

JAL implemented the below-described measures to recover the demand that plummeted due to the
multiple terrorist attacks on the U.S. in September 2001, as well as to ensure its share in the
increasingly harsh competition after the temporary runway service was started at Narita Airport.

In erms of route operations, utilizing the provisional number two runway that opened in April at
Narita Airport, JAL gradually increased the number of flights mainly from Tokyo to such destinations
as London, Paris, Beijing, Shanghai, and Seoul, and opened new services to Hanoi (in April) and
Xiamen {in June). Furthermore, by the end of the fiscal year, JAL built one of the world’s biggest
aviation networks serving China, flying to ten Chinese cities from Japan, utilizing the newly expanded
air transport rights attained as a result of aviation negotiations between Japan and China in September.

In the area of sales and marketing, JAL put strenuous efforts in its services to Chinese destinations, the
number of which increased dramatically due to the introduction of new routes and code-share flights
with JAS. In July, JAL implemented JAL NEW CHINA and JAL Business CHINA campaigns, in
which the company strived to create tourism demand and business travel demand for China with its
renewed image and value as a developing market. As one of the sponsors of the Japan National
Football Team, JAL offered Japan/Korea World Cup discount fares from the end of May through mid
July. In October, a new fare system was established in line with the management consolidation,
which enabled the combination of JAL Goku and JAS Super Pex fares.

In terms of e-business, JAL implemented JAL e-style Campaign in November to promote customers’
use of the Internet, and i February, it enabled Internet booking/purchasing of international flight
tickets on its website not only for Mileage Bank Members but also for all other customers. Owing to
those undertakings, JAL’s international flight booking via the Internet nearly doubled from the last
term.

However, the demand during the first half of the term remained low particularly for North American
and Hawaiian destinations in the aftermath of the terrorist attacks on the U.S. The demand for flights
from Japan during the Japan/Korea World Cup was not as high as expected, and the total demand of
the first half stood at 95% of that of the term before last, which was before the terrorist attacks. In
the latter half of the term, the effect of the U.S. terrorist attacks somewhat subsided, but the stagnant
economy as well as a number of unfortunate incidents including the terrorist attack in Bali (October)
and a typhoon in Guam (December), and rising concerns over the situation in Iraq were factors that



negatively affected its operations. The demand remained at 96% of that of the term before last until
March, when the armed invasion of Iraq started, causing a further plunge in the demand. The total
demand of the latter half of the term ended at 93% of that of the term before the last.

The total number of passengers transported in this term was 12,750,000, up 7.1% from the previous
term, but down 6.4% from the term before last, and the income was ¥614,100 million, up 7.0% from
the previous term, but down 3.5% from the term before last.

Domestic Passenger Business

Utilizing the increase in the number of tke-off and landing slots in July at Haneda Airport, JAL
started operating routes to Toyama, Okayama, and Yamaguchi-Ube, which had been monopolized
formerly by one of its competitors. After the management consolidation in October, JAL strived to
enhance its flight network as well as improve customer convenience and profitability by eliminating
redundant flights on some routes and changing route operations flexibly according to the demand.

In the sales and marketing area, JAL implemented various campaigns including Hokkaido and
Okinawa campaigns as well as a JAL/JAS Domestic Flight Triple Mileage Campaign from October, to
commemorate domestic mileage partnership with JAS. JAL strived to create demand by setting such
competitive fares as JJ Coupon Fares to commemorate the management consolidation, in addition to
the usual Bargain Fares. Particularly with the competitive routes, JAL aimed to strengthen price
competitiveness by setting aggressive fares.

Including the period during the Japan/Korea World Cup, the annual total number of chartered flights
exceeded 70. As a result, the term’s total number of passengers transported was 20,810,000, up 2.8%
from the previous term. However, due to the decline in unit sales, the total income was ¥276,900
million, down 1.4% from the previous term.

International Cargo Business

As economic activities further globalize, many businesses have stepped up use of air cargo as the
shipment method of choice. Supported by the high demand throughout the year, the total demand has
exceeded that of the previous term and remains strong for all routes. IT- and automobile -related
shipments to North American and Asian destinations, i.e., China, in particular, showed particularly
strong growth.

On this backdrop, in May, JAL implemented a fleet formation of ten (10) aircraft dedicated to cargo
flights to reinforce the supply side of the business in response to the strong demand.

In terms of route operations, JAL has effectively responded to the strong demand by increasing in
phases the number of cargo flights for its Shanghai route in April, November, and February, increasing
the number of passenger flights for the Beijing and Shanghai routes in April, opening a new passenger
route between Tokyo and Xiamen in June, and opening new cargo routes between Tokyo-Dalian and
Tokyo-London-Amsterdam in September.

In the area of product strategies, in addition to the existing services for guaranteeing time-sensitive
transportation in Apnl, JAL has introduced products to accommodate special handling arrangements
according to the industry’s needs, such as precision equipment and refrigerated transport, to create a
service structure with added value in terms of both speed and quality in order to increase its income.

The resultant total weight transported was 4,211,570,000 ton-km and the income was ¥145,200
million, up 10.6% and 15.7%, respectively, from the previous term.



Domestic Cargo Business

In addition to the sluggish national economy, the reinforcement of security for air cargo transport has
encouraged users, particularly courier services, to switch to land transport where possible. Because
of this, the demand remained generally low. The resultant total weight transported was 239,420,000
ton-km and the income was ¥17,900 million, down 0.3% and 1.4%, respectively, from the previous
term.

Other

In related business areas, JAL has strived to rationalize and consolidate them in line with the
management consolidation and the subsequent reorganization of the Group to further improve
efficiency.

(ii) JAS
International Passenger Business

JAS has shifted the centralization of its hub operations from Kansai Airport to Narita Airport after the
introduction of the provisional second runway at Narita Airport. This led to the change of the
KansatKunming and KansatHong Kong routes to Narita-Kunming and Narita-Hong Kong routes.
In addition, JAS opened a Shanghai route to strengthen its flight network in China and to improve
competitiveness. The Tokyo-Hong Kong route was closed as of October as a first step toward
eliminating redundancy with JAL services.

The resulting total number of passengers transported was 550,000 and the income was ¥16,000 million,
down 19.5% and 19.3%, respectively, from the previous term.

Domestic Passenger Business

Utilizing the increase in the number of take-off/landing slots at Haneda Airport from July, JAS
increased the number of flights for eight high-demand routes including Aomori and Takamatsu routes,
and designed schedules that would enable passengers to take day trips between local airports and the
nation’s capital. JAS dso reviewed its routes to and from Kansai Airport and closed services or
moved its base airport to Itami Airport with the exception of a few flights, to improve the schedule and
profitability.

Moreover, JAS reviewed low-demand routes in an effort to reorganize them, as well as the number of
flights and aircraft arrangement to respond flexibly and efficiently to the demand. In the latter half of
the term, in line with the management consolidation, JAS eliminated some of its flights that were
redundant with JAL services and improved schedule and customer convenience.

In the sales and marketing area, JAS enhanced its fare offers including JJ Coupon Fares in
commemoration of the management consolidation, Ultra Discount Fares, and Birthday Discount Fares,
thereby creating more passenger demand. JAS implemented Fly JAS to Chubu Campaign for the
Nagoya and Matsumoto routes and JAS Beyblade Campaign 2002 applicable for all its domestic
routes from July through September, to promote the sales of JAS-route-related travel products and
those aimed for family use. Regarding the sales of travel products after the consolidation in October,
JAS produced ski tours involving both JAL and JAS flights called JAL/JAS Consolidation Tour, to
promote the use of flights of the two companies.

As for the mileage program, JAS entered domestic flight mileage partnership with JAL from October
to improve the convenience of JAS Mileage Service members by expanding the range of domestic
flights to which the mileage program is applicable, and to promote use of JAS flights by JAL Mileage



Bank members. JAS carried out the JAL/JAS Domestic Flight Triple Mileage Campaign in
collaboration with JAL to increase the demand.

In addition to implementing the above-described measures to increase the demand, including the
enhancement of private-user-oriented discount fare offers, JAS also strived to further improve the
convenience of its customers. However, due to the increasingly severe competition, unit sales have
dectined. The resultant total number of passengers transported was 20,780,000 and the income was
¥291,500 million, down 1.4 % and 5.2%, respectively, from the previous term.

International Cargo Business

JAS started transporting international mail from Guangzhou to Tokyo, but due to he closure of
Tokyo-Hong Kong route, the total weight transported was 38,840,000 ton-km and the income was
¥3,100 million, down 10.8% and 18.7%, respectively, from the previous term.

Domestic Cargo Business

In addition to the sluggish national economy, the reinforcement of security for air cargo transport has
encouraged users to switch to land transport where possible. As a result, he demand remained
generally low. The resultant total weight transported was 163,210,000 ton-km and the income was
¥16,100 million, down 0.4% and 4.2%, respectively, from the previous term.

(2) Trends and Results of Our Business

At the time of formation of the new JAL Group, we specified our Corporate Philosophy as the Group’s
basic philosophy, and the Safety Charter that defines the basis of our measure for safety, which is the
most important challenge for us as an air transport business group.

Corporate Philosophy

JAL Group, as a total air transport group, shall contribute to the peace and prosperity of Japan and the
world by being a bridge between cultures and the hearts of customers. JAL Group shall:

1. constantly pursue excellence in terms of quality and safety,

2. think and act with the customer’s viewpoint in mind,

3. maximize corporate value,

4. be a good corporate citizen, and

5. foster a corporate culture characterized by hard work and challenges.

Safety Charter

Safety in flight operations is the very foundation and social responsibility of the JAL Group.

To carry out the mission of assuring safety, the management will exert strong resolve and the
employees will be keenly aware of their individual roles and responsibilities, and together we will
combine our utmost knowledge and capabilities to ensure the safety and reliable operation of each and
every flight.

The Company, as the holding company of JAL, JAS and other business companies, has developed a
group-wide strategic plan, executed optimal distribution of management resources, and enhanced
management organization for optimal group operation.

More specifically, an Agreement on Management Guidance and Specified Entrusted Business was
signed between the Company and JAL, and the Company and JAS, respectively. This has led to the
establishment of a scheme in which the Company is able to execute direct and broad supervision of the
management of these business companies.



In the same way, it was decided that JAL, JAS and other major business companies execute
appropriate supervision of the management of their subsidiaries and affiliates, in accordance with the
policies specified by the Company from a group management perspective.

As regard the finances necessary for the operation and capital investment by JAL and JAS, it was
decided that the Company would centrally control the financial activities to improve group-wide
financing efficiency.

JAL Sales Co., Ltd., and JAL Capital Co., Ltd., former JAL subsidiaries, have become direct
subsidiaries of the Company, as JAL Group will be centrally responsible for the management of their
businesses.

In addition to the management organizational enhancement, the Company has executed proactive IR
(Investor Relations/Financial Information Disclosure) activities pertaining to the business companies
of JAL Group including JAL and JAS, which are the foundation of our profit-making, to reflect the
priority we put on our shareholders/investors.

The Company held an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on February 19, 2003, was given approval
to decrease our capital reserve, and on March 24, moved ¥89,801,841,015 from the capital rserve
account to other capital surplus accounts.

Fee payments by JAL and JAS pertaining to the Agreement on Management Guidance and Specified
Entrusted Business, as described above, and interest on loans, etc. brought to the Company an
operating income of ¥3,100 million, an ordinary profit of ¥40 million, and a current term profit of ¥11
million.

(3) Challenges the Company and JAL Group Must Meet

The prospect of the national economy remains bleak, with the likely progress of the current deflation
and a further delay in economic recovery. There is concern in the aviation industry that the invasion
of Iraq, Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), and prolonged recession will lead to a further
decline in the demand and a delay in economic recovery. The business environment surrounding the
Company and JAL Group is expected to remain extremely severe for both international and domestic
operations.

In this circumstance, the Company as the holding company recognizes that our mission is to supervise
the entire JAL Group and to maximize the corporate value of the Group. The Company will be
responsible for strategy planning, resource distribution planning, promotion of public/investor
relations, and management of business company operations. Business companies will focus on
maintaining aviation safety, finalizing and executing business plans, planning and implementing
market strategies, improving asset efficiency, and maximizing income.

In order to precisely define JAL Group’s management scheme, in April, the Group introduced an
organizational structure that clearly defines the responsibilities and authorities of the holding company,
business/functional segments, SSC (Shared Service Center: a centralized office function shared in the
Group), and independent elated businesses. In this scheme, each fundamental component of the
Group will have greater independence in the operation of its specialty area.



Basic Structure of the Group Management
Aiming for the world’s top airline group

Business Segment
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Our internal agreement is that the Company will specify strategic objectives with quantitative targets
covering the four aspects of customers, business processes, human resources, and financial results,
instead of looking only at the financial results of a single year, thereby helping the Group achieve mid-
to long-term sustainable development. To coordinate among the various objectives, we will
introduce the Management Objective Control System and build a well-balanced management
organization.

Partic ularly for our customers, the Group will continue to strive for the provision of products and
services that meet their demand, more efficiently than ever.

In the area of route operations, all airline companies in the Group will cooperate to execute proactive
and efficient operations to promote the consolidation and maximize the benefits of it.

In the aspect of business operations, we will reorganize JAL and JAS into Japan Airlines International,
responsible for international passenger business and cargo business, and Japan Airlines Domestic,
responsible for domestic passenger business, thereby promoting further consolidation in order to
realize more efficient business operations suitable for the characteristics of each line of business.

As regards system integration, our basic policy is expressed in our two mottos of “assured system
integration” and “priority to customer-related systems.” Customer-related critical systems will be
integrated by April 2004 and other internal systems will be integrated in phases from this fiscal year
through fiscal year 2004.

In order to promote shareholders’ (investors’) understanding of the present and future of JAL Group,
the Company will strive to reinforce the Group’s IR activities through faster and more detailed
information disclosure. Our aim is to realize an “IR that shows the face of the management.”

As maintaining aviation safety is the foundation of the business of JAL Group, we will continue to be
acutely aware of its importance in our daily activities to ensure the reliable and safe operation of each
and every flight. From the broader perspective of crisis management, the Company will further
reinforce a safety management scheme involving not only personnel directly related to safety, such as
those related to operations, maintenance, cabin, airport, cargo, and passenger service, but also all the
officers and employees of each and every company in JAL Group, in an active effort toward
“maintenance and improvement of safety and quality.”



The Company and JAL Group aim to be “the world’s top airline group” in both quality and quantity,
through the above-described efforts to overcome the severe business environment. We vow to
respond to the trust bestowed on us by our shareholders by implementing firm measures to maximize
the effects of the consolidation.

We respectfully ask our shareholders to continue supporting the Company.

(4) Status of Financing

We took a long-term loan of ¥138,100 million to extend loans to our subsidiaries. The funds will be
appropriated to the refinancing of their current loans, and their capital investment.

We assumed a portion of our subsidiaries’ debts, totaling ¥189,800 million.

(5) Trends of Business Results and Assets

Ist term

Item (FY1999) (FY2000) (FY2001) (FY2002)

Operating income 3,176
(¥ million) /

Ordinary profit 40
(¥ million) /

Current profit L 11
(¥ million) /

Current profit per % 0.01

share (¥) )

Gross assets 619,604
(¥ million) /

Net assets 289,351
(¥ nullion) /

Net asset per share
) 146.24

(Note) This 1s the first term since the Company’s establishment; therefore, no figures for

past terms are available.




2. Company Overview
[The statements hereafter are true as of March 31, 2002, unless otherwise specified elsewhere.]

(1) Major Company Activities
Control and management, through shareholding, of the business activities of the companies that operate
regular and irregular air transportation businesses, aircraft maintenance business, and additional and related

businesses

(2) Head Office

15-1, Konan 2-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo

(3) Shares

a. Number of Shares
Authorized: 7,000,000,000 shares
Issued: 1,980,465,250 shares

b. Number of Shareholders 271,597

¢. Major Shareholders

Name Shares Ratio of | Our investment| Ratio of
(1,000) |shareholding (1,000) shareholding

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 88,611 4.60% — —9%
Tokyu Corporation 80,397 4.17 — —
Eitaro Itoyama : 70,000 3.63 — —
The Tokio Marine and Fire] 52,390 2.72 — —
Insurance Co., Ltd. (*)
Nissay Dowa General| 44,960 2.33 — —
Insurance Co., Ltd.
Nippon Life Insurance| 41,392 2.15 - —
Company
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance| 39,635 2.06 — —
Company
Kokusai Kogyo Co., Ltd. 34,627 1.80 — —
JAL Group Employee's| 34,402 1.78 _ _
Shareholding
The Bank of 33,917 1.76 — _
Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd.

*  The Tokio Marine & Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Nichido Fire and Marine Insurance
Co., Ltd. formed a holding company, Millea Holdings, Inc., on April 2, 2002, by share
transfer. The number of shares of the Company that The Nichido Fire and Marine
Insurance Co., Ltd. owned as of March 31, 2003 was 22,713,000 shares (Ratio of
shareholding: 1.18 %).

(4) Acquisition, Disposition, and Holding of Treasury Stocks

a. Acquired Stocks
Acquisition by purchase of shares falling short of one unit
Common Stock 1,819,097 shares

Amount of Stock Acquired 462,305,000 yen



b. Disposed Stocks

Common Stock — shares
Amount of Stock Sold — yen
¢. Number of Stocks Held at the End of the Term
Common Stock 1,819,097 shares
(5) Employees
Number of Empl Average Number
Hmber of Bmployees Average age of Years in Service
128 45.4 years 20.1 years
(Notes)

1. 124 of our employees are seconded from Japan Airlines and Japan Air System, and their average
years of employment pertain to their total years of employment within the Group.

2. The seven employees who have been seconded to Japan Airlines System Corporation and
re-seconded to outside organizations are not included.

(6) Status of Significant Corporate Combination

a. Status of Important Affiliates

Commany Name caal | 20 Main Line of
omipany fram pia Shareholding Business
. (¥ million) (%) . .
Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. 188,550 100.0 Air transport business
Japan Air System Co., Ltd. 23,486 100.0  [Air transport business
Japan Asia Airways Co., Ltd. 4310 *90.5 [Air transport business
fapan Trans Ocean Air Co, 4537 | *511  |Air transport business
JALways Co., Ltd. 3,000 *100.0 | Air transport business
JAL EXPRESS 5,800 *100.0  |Air transport business
'Ilizan Air - Commuter  Co,, 300 *60.0 |Air transport business
AGP Corporation v 2,038 *63.0 |Power supply to aircrafts
JAL Sales Co., Lid. 3250 | 1000 |Ar ticket sales, travel
agency
JALPAK Co., Ltd. 900 | *78.0 "Sr;ﬁ:sel product planning and
JAL Tours Co., Ltd. 80 | *1000 |Travel product planning and
JAL Hotels Co., Ltd. 4272 | 9oy |Hotel management, hotel
operation subcontractor
JALUX Inc. 2558 x 591 Wholesale, retaill, non-life
insurance agency, etc.

Notes: 1. * indicates the ratio of shareholding including the shares owned by subsidiaries.
2. JAL Sales Network Co. Ltd. was renamed as JAL Sales Co. Ltd. as of October 4,
2002. )
3. JAS Nice Wing Co., Ltd. was renamed as JAL Tours Co., Ltd. as of December 2,
2002. It merged with JAL. STORY Co., Ltd. as of April 1, 2003.
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4. In line with the transfer of management and operation of JAL Sales Co., Ltd. that
was separated from Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. on April 1, 2003, JAL Sales Co., Ltd.
came to be a direct subsidiary of the Company.

b. Results of Significant Corporate Combination
The overview of our consolidated settlement of accounts is as follows.

Ist term
Item (FY1999) (FY2000) (FY2001) (FY2002)
Operating income 2,083,480
(¥ million)
Ordinary profit 15,840
(¥ million)
Current profit 4 11,645
(¥ million) /]
Current profit per
share (¥) / 394
Gross assets 2,172,284
(¥ mullion) //
Net assets 254,256
(¥ mullion)
Net asset per share /
129.68
*)

(Note) This is the first term since the Company’s establishment; therefore, no figures for
past terms are available.

(7) Main Lenders
Our Shares Held by Lender
Loan Balance at
the End of T Number of Shareg ]
Lender ¢ End ot term Held Ratio Qf
Shareholding
(¥million) (1,000 shares)
Development Bank of Japan 154,000 _ A
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 25,310 88,611 4.60
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. 24,705 33,917 1.76
UFJ Bank Ltd. 23,540 10,834 0.56
Shinkin Central Bank 10,956 — —
Nippon Life Insurance Company 9,739 41,392 2.15
Sumitomo Life Insurance Company 7,000 800 0.0
Yasuda Mutual Life Insurance
Company 7,000 527 0.0
West LB AG 5,956 — —
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance
Company 5,500 39,635 2.06

i1



(8) Managing Directors and Auditors

Title Name Area of Responsibility
Representative  |Isao Kaneko CEO (JAL Group CEO)
director & Corporate Management,
president Chairman, Integration Conference,
General Manager, System Integration,
Chairman, Flight Safety Committee
Chairman, Corporate Compliance & Business Risk Management
Committee
Representative  |Hiromi Funabiki Chairman, Board of Directors
director
Executive Vice [Minoru Morikawa  |Assistant to the President
President
Executive Vice [|Masahide Ochi Assistant to the President,
President Chairman, Environmental Committee
Senior Managing |Toshiyuki Shinmachi |General Manager, Corporate Affairs
Director
Managing Hidekazu Nishizuka |General Manager, Human Resources Planning
Director General Manager, Purchasing
Managing Fumitaka Kurihara |General Manager, Corporate Management
Director Deputy General Manager, Purchasing
Managing Gentaro Maruyama |General Manager, Corporate Management
Director General Manager, Finance & Investor Relations
Director Nobuyoshi Sera Deputy General Manager, Corporate Affairs
Deputy General Manager, Finance & Investor Relations
Director Susumu Miyoshi General Manager, Corporate Compliance and Legal Affairs
Director Katsuo Haneda Executive Vice President, JAL
(nonstanding)
Director (") Takashi Masuko Executive Vice President, JAL
Director (") Shunji Kono Advisor, The Tokio Marine and Fire Insurance Co., Ltd.
Director (") Ken Moroi Advisor, Taiheiyo Cement Corp.
Director (") Shinobu Shimizu Chairman, Tokyu Corp.
Standing Auditor |Yasunaka Furukawa
Standing Auditor | Toshiyuki Sakai
Standing Auditor |Shigeo Matsui
Auditor Seiso Neo Corporate Auditor of the Board, JAL
Auditor Yoshihisa Akiyama |Chairman, The Kansai Electric Power Co., Inc.
Auditor Masao Nishimura Former President, The Industrial Bank of Japan, Ltd.

(Note) Shunji Kono, Ken Moroi, and Shinobu Shimizu are outside directors as defined in Item 7-2,
Paragraph 2, Article 188 of the Commercial Code.

(Note) Yoshihisa Akiyama and Masao Nishimura are outside auditors as stipulated in Article 18, Paragraph
1 of the Law for the Special Provisions of the Commercial Code for the Audit of Stock Companies,
etc.
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The names and areas of responsibilities of the executive officers are as follows.

Title Name Area of Responsibility

Executive officer |Rei Endo General Manager, Safety/Environment Promotion
Executive officer |Sumio Yasunaga Deputy General Manager, Corporate Affairs (Corporate PR)

Executive officer |Hideyuki Kanenari |Deputy General Manager, Corporate Management
Executive officer |Fumio Tsuchiya Deputy General Manager, Corporate Management

Executive officer |Masuhisa Yokoyama |Deputy General Manager, Human Resources Planning
Executive officer |Toshihide Nakamura |Deputy General Manager, Corporate Management

Manager, Secretary’s Office
Business Manager, Corporate Affairs

Secretary-General, Integration Conference

3. Significant Fact Concerning the State of the Company That Arose after Closing the Books

1.

Utilizing the abnidged corporate separation provision of the Commercial Code, the Company took
over the business management of JAL Sales Co. Ltd., and JAL Capital Co., Ltd., former
subsidiaries of Japan Airlines Co., Ltd., to make them our direct subsidiaries as of April 1, 2003.
Due to this takeover of the subsidiary business management, the Company took over, from Japan

Airlines Co., Ltd., assets worth ¥6,750 million and labilties worth ¥6,750 million. Since the

takeover of the subsidiary business management did not involve issuing of new stock, the stock

capitalization and the capital reserve of the Company remain unchanged.

Considering that the passenger flight demand trends have been affected by the worsening
economic climate, the war in Iraq, and the spread of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS),
JAL Group has decided to decrease the number of international flights for the first half of FY2003

from that originally planned.

JAL Group is striving to streamline our sales structure to strengthen our competitiveness and

improve the efficiency of our business operation.  Following the wholesale network
reorganization, we have decided to restructure the retail companies withn the Group. More
specifically, after the merger of JAL Tours Co., Ltd. and JAL STORY Co., Ltd. on April 1, JAL
Sales Co., Ltd. will acquire J-Travel Hokkaido Inc., J-Travel Tokyo Inc., and FTravel Osaka Inc.,

(current subsidiaries of Japan Air System Co., Ltd.), and Japan Tour System Kyushu Co., Ltd.,

(current subsidiary of Japan Airlines Co., Ltd.), and position them as direct subsidiaries by July.
Japan Tours System Co., Ltd., Hokkaido Tour System Co., Ltd.,, and other regional retail
companies will transfer their operations. Thus, the Group will reorganize our retail structure to

the one consisting of JAL Travel Hokkaido Co., Ltd., JAL Travel Co., Ltd.,, JAL Travel West

Japan Co., Ltd., and JAL Travel Kyushu Co., Lid., each taking charge of one of the four sales

regions of Japan.

The amounts and quantities listed in this Business Report are rounded down to the nearest unit of
measure indicated.
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Balance Sheet

(As of March 31, 2003)

(Unit: ¥million)

Asset Liability
Item Amount [tem Amount
I. Cumrent assets I. Current liabilities
Cash and deposits 67 Operating accounts payable 451
Operating accounts receivable 392 Short-term loans in subsidiaries 1,257
payable
Long-term loans in subsidiaries 31,886 Long-term loans payable to be repaid 31,886
recoverable within one year within one year
Short-term prepaid expenses 76 Accrued liabilities 37
Deferred tax assets 6 Accrued corporate and other taxes 48
payable
Other current assets 1 Accrued expenses payable 860
Other current liabilities 38
Subtotal for current assets 32,429
Subtotal for current liabilities 34,581
II. Fixed assets
(Tangible fixed assets) (744) II. Fixed liabilities
Buildings 681
Tools, equipment and fixtures 63 Long-term loans payable 295,672
Total for liabilities 330,253
(Intangible fixed assets) (10)
Software 10 Shareholders’ Equity
I. Capital
(Investments) (585,898) Capital 100,000
Investments in subsidiaries 289,851 I1. Capital surpluses
Long-term loans in 295,672 Capital reserve 100,000
subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets 13 Other capital surpluses 89,801
Other investments 360 Gain from reduction of capital 89,801
reserve
Subtotal 189,801
II. Retained earnings
Subtotal for fixed assets 586,653 Unappropriated retained earnings 11
for the current term
(Of which, current profit) (1)
II1. Deferred assets IV. Treasury stocks <462
Organization costs 522 Subtotal for shareholders’ equity 289,351
Total for assets 619,604 Total for liabilities and 619,604

stockholders' equity
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Profit & Loss Statement (From October 2, 2002 to March 31, 2003)

(Unit: ¥million)

Item Amount
Operating income 3,176
Operating Business income 3,176
profit Operating expenses 2,987
and Business expenses 388
loss Selling, general, and administrative expenses 2,599
Operating profit 188
Ordinary [ Nonoperating income 0
profit Interests received 0
and loss | Nonoperating Other nonoperating income
profit
and Nonoperating expenses 149
loss Interests expenses 3
Amortization of organization costs 130
Other nonoperating expenses 15
Ordinary profit 40
Current profit before taxes 40
Corporate, residential, and business taxes 48
Adjustments, including corporate tax -19
Current profit 11
Unappropriated retained earnings for the current term 11
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. Important Accounting Policies

(1) Valuation standards and methods for securities
Investments in subsidiaries: Cost method based on the moving average method

(2) Depreciation method for fixed assets
Straight-line method

(3) Amortization method for deferred assets
Organization cost: To be equally amortized over five years

(4) Hedge accounting method
The special accounting method is applied to interest swaps that meet the requirements for the
application of the method.

(5) Consumption and other taxes
Consumption and other applicable taxes are not included.

2. Balance Sheet
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.
(2) Short-term monetary claims to subsidiaries: ¥32,279 million
Short-term monetary liabilities to subsidiaries: ¥2,023 million
Long-term monetary claims to subsidiaries: ¥295,672 million
The amounts listed above include those listed for the sub-items in the balance sheet.
(3) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets: ¥21 million
(4) Liabilities for guarantee: ¥39,410 million
(5) Current profit per share: ¥0.01
3. Profit and Loss Statement
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.
(2) Transaction volume with subsidiaries
Operating profit: ¥3,176 million:

Operating expenses: ¥519 million:
Nonoperating transaction volume: ¥51 million



Proposed Appropriation of Retained Earnings

Item

Amount

(1) Appropriation of unappropriated retained earnings for the current term

Unappropriated retained earnings for the current term

These will be appropriated as follows:

Retained earnings to be brought forward to the next term

(2) Appropriation of other capital surplus

Other capital surplus

These will be appropriated as follows:

Dividends (Four yen per share)

Other capital surplus to be brought forward to the next term

¥11,906,107

11,906,107

89,801,841,015

7,914,584,612

81,887,256,403

The total amount of dividends is calculated excluding 1,819,097 treasury stocks.
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[Reference Materials]

1. Overview of Consolidated Accounting for Japan Airlines System Corporation
2. Overview of Individual Accounting for Japan Airlines Co., Ltd.

3. Overview of Individual Accounting for Japan Air System Co., Ltd.

4. Aircraft Owned by JAL Group ,

5. Major Branch Offices and Customer Service Offices of JAL Group
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I irlines S Consolidated Balance St

Liability, minority equitv and shareholders’ equity

Current term Current term
Item (March 31.2003) | Item (March 31, 2003}
Amount Amount
¥ million| ¥ million
1. Current assets 1. Current liabilities
Cash and deposits 133,145 Operating accounts payable 204,557
o "
Notes receivable and operating 202,519 Short-term loans payable 23,035
accounts receivable
Securities 14,621 Bonds to be redeemed within one year 67,495
Inventories 78,424 ang-ten‘n loans payable to be repaid 127,537
within one vear
Deferred tax assets (current) 16,597 Accrued corporate and other taxes 5,320
Other current assets 88,131 Deferred tax liabilities (current) 73
Allowance for bad debts -3,117 Other current liabilities 187.327
-
E
8
Total for current assets 530,322 = Total for current liabilities 615,346
11. Fixed assets IL. Fixed liabilities
(Tangible fixed assets) ( 1,382.615) Corporate bonds 218,700
Buildings and structures 256,529 Long-term loans payable 864,385
" Machinery, equipment and movers 41,273 Retirement allowances 143.670
Tu); Aircrafts 915,938 Deferred tax liabilities (fixed) 413
< Land 88,979 Other fixed liabilities 51.988
Construction in progress accounts 53,203
Other tangible fixed asscts 26,690 Total for fixed liabilities 1,279,158
(Intangible fixed assets) ( 53.127 Total for liabilities 1.894.505
Software 49,820
Consolidated adjustment accounts 306
Other intangible fixed assets 3,000 Minority equity 23,522
(Investments) ( 206.219) 5. | [ Capital 100.000
Investment in securities 77,043 ‘é_ 11. Capital surpluses 147,175
Long term loans 18,498 ,3 III. Retained earnings 23,481
Deferred tax assets (fixed) 41,503 § v, O.t}.ler loss on valuation of marketable 2780
g securities
= - .
Other investments 73,701 :s__: V. Exchange conversion adjustment 7,451
& accounts
Allowances for bad debts -4,528 VI. Treasury stock -8,168
[ 254, 256
Total for fixed assets 1,641,962 Total for shareholders' equity
Total for Liability, minority equity and
Total for assets 2,172,284 shareholders' equity 2,172, 284
(Notes)
(Notes/

(1) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets

(2) Contingent liabilities
Liabilities for guarantee

Guarantee contracts, management guidance memorandum, etc.

Contingent liabilitics involved in contracts for underwriting the fulfillment of liabilities for bonds y30 000 million for the current

(3) Number of treasury stock

¥1,661,854 million for the current term

¥15,207 miflion for the current term
¥2,133 million for current term

term
19,863,126 shares for the current term



Japan Airlines System  Consolidated Profit & Loss Statement

Current term
ltem (From April 1, 2002)
(To March 31, 2003)
Amount
¥ million
1. Operating profit and loss
Operating income 2,083.480
(Business income) 2,083,480
Operating expenses 2,072,891
(Business expenses) 1,661,421
2 (Selling, general and administrative expenses ) 411,469
[=}
E
% Operating profit 10,589
[="
g 11. Nonoperating profit and loss
=
© Nonoperating income 59,249
(Interests received and dividends) 2,932
(Investment profit on equity method) 340
{Other nonoperating income) 55,976
Nonoperating expenses 53,998
(Interests expenses) 34,657
(Exchange loss) 1,975
(Other nonoperating expenses) 17.365
Ordinary profit 15,840
@ I Extraordinary profit 11,999
:f (Profit on sale of fixed assets) 4,446
E (Profit on sale of investment securities ) 4,623
“5 (Other extraordinary profit) 2,928
o
- ,
g 1l Extraordinary loss 23,758
g (Loss on sale of fixed assets) 9,852
g {Management consolidation-related costs) 7,304
= (Other extraordinary loss) 6,600
Current net income before tax or other adjustments 4,081
Corporate, residential and business taxes 8,100
Adjustments, including corporate tax -16.468
Minority shareholder profit 804
Current net profit 11,645
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Japan Airlines System
Basic Matters for Preparing Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Scope of consolidated accounting

Of the 307 subsidiaries, 171, including those listed below, are covered by consolidated accounting.

Japan Airlines Co., Ltd.

Japan Air System Co., Ltd.
Japan Asia Airways Co., Ltd.
Japan Trans Ocean Air Co., Ltd.
JALways Co., Ltd.

JAL EXPRESS

Japan Air Commuter Co., Ltd.
AGP Corporation

JAL Sales Co., Ltd.

JALPAK Co., Ltd.

JAL Tours Co., Ltd.

JAL Hotels Co., Ltd.

JALUX Inc.

JAL Information Technology Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary at the beginning of the term, ceased to be
a subsidiary as the shares held by the Company in the subsidiary were sold off, and therefore, it was
excluded from the consolidated subsidiaries and the equity method is now applied to it. Similarly, JTA
Information & Communication Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary at the beginning of the term, ceased to
be a subsidiary as the percentage of shares the Company held in the subsidiary declined, and therefore, it
was excluded fom the consolidated subsidiaries and the equity method is now applied to it. Cocos
Lagoon Development Corp., which was also a consolidated subsidiary in the past, was excluded from the
consolidated subsidiaries starting this term as the shares held by the Company in the subsidiary were sold
off. Furthermore, Alive Insurance Pte, Ltd. and JAS Customer Service Co., Ltd. were excluded from the
consolidated subsidiaries from the viewpoint of importance. Okinawa Catering Service Co., Ltd. and
AGS Trading Co., Ltd. were also excluded due to their liquidation.

JAL Finance Corp., and Nikko Group Finance Co., Ltd., both of which were consolidated subsidiaries in
the past, merged with JAL Leasing Co., Ltd., and their respective trade names were changed to JAL Capital
Co., Ltd. Chitose International Hotel Co., Ltd. to which the equity method was applied is now included in
the consolidated subsidiaries because newly issued shares were subscribed for by JAL Hotels Co., Ltd.
Two newly established companies, JAL Livre Co., Ltd. and JLC Insurance Co., Ltd., have also become
consolidated subsidiaries.

2. Application of the equity method

Of the 136 non-consolidated and 99 affiliated companies, investments in 27 companies, including Japan
Turbine Technologies Co., Ltd., are subject to the equity method.

As compared to the beginning of the term, the shares the Company held in JAL Information Technology
Co., Lid. were sold off, and the percentage of shares the Company held in JTA Information &
Communication Co., Ltd. declned, and therefore, the equity method is applied to these two companies.
Chitose International Hotel Co., Ltd. has become a consolidated subsidiary because JAL Hotels subscribed
for new shares offered by the hotel operator.

3. Business vear for consolidated subsidiaries, etc.

Of the consolidated subsidiaries, 25 companies including Pacific Fuel Trading Corp. close their accounts
on December 31 each year and JLC Insurance Co., Ltd. does so on February 28 each year. For
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transactions among these consolidated subsidiaries between the two closing dates, necessary adjustments
are made only for material inconsistencies.

4. Accounting standards

(1) Valuation standards and methods for important assets

(a) Inventories: Appraised mainly using the cost method based on the moving average method

(b} Securities:  Other securities with market prices are valuated using the market value method based
on market prices and other data applicable on the last day of the fiscal term (differences
in appraisal value are reported in the “Capital” section). The accounting of sale costs
is mainly based on the moving average method.
Other securities without market prices are mainly valuated using the cost method based
on the moving average method.

(c) Derivatives: Appraised using the market value method

(2) Depreciation method for fixed assets
Aircraft (including spare motors and spare parts): Straight line and declining balance methods
Tangible fixed assets excluding aircraft: Straight-line method for Japan Airlines and Japan Air
System, and mainly the declining balance method for
other companies
Intangible fixed assets: Straight-line method

(3) Standards for providing for important allowances:
(a) Employees' retirement allowances:

- In order to prepare for payment of retirement allowances to employees, retirement allowances are
provided for based on the expected amount of retirement allowance liabilities and pension assets at
the end of the current term.

- Most of the differences arising from the change of accounting standards are equally apportioned as
expenses over 15 years.

- Most of the differences arising from mathematical calculations are apportioned as expenses over
15 years using the straight-line method starting from the term following the one in which such
differences occur.

- Most of the past service liabilities are reported as expenses when such liabilities occur. Some of
the consolidated subsidiaries report as expenses the amount obtained by dividing the total amount
of such liabilities by the certain number of years within the average remaining period of service for
the employees working when such liabilities occur.

(b) Allowances for bad debts:

- In order to prepare for loss arising from bad debts, the amount equivalent to the expected amount
of irrecoverable claims is reserved by using the actual percentage of bad debts for general claims
and considering recoverability for claims feared to become bad debts.

(4) Standards for converting the value of important assets and liabilities in foreign currency into Japanese
yen

The values of monetary claims and labilities in foreign currency are converted into Japanese yen based on
the spot rate applicable on the closing date, and differences due to the conversion are included in the
profit/loss statement. The values of assets, liabilities, profits and expenses for overseas subsidiaries and
other entities are converted into Japanese yen based on the spot rate applicable on the closing date, and
exchange gains or losses are included in the exchange conversion adjustment account in the minority
shareholders’ equity section.

(5) Accounting method for important lease transactions

Chiefly, finance lease transactions other than those considered to see the ownership of leased property
transferred to the borrower are accounted for according to the method used for regular lease transactions.
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(6) Important hedge accounting method

The deferred hedge accounting method is used. The value of monetary claims and liabilities in foreign
currency, which are accompanied by exchange contracts, etc. is converted into Japanese yen based on the
fixed value of yen for cash flow in the contracts, etc. For interest swaps that meet the special accounting
requirements, the special accounting method is used.

(7) Accounting of consumption and other taxes -
Consumption and other taxes are not included.

(8) Capital consolidation procedures
The equity pooling method is applied to capital consolidation procedures for the management consolidation
of Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. with Japan Air System Co., Ltd. through share transfer.

5. Offsetting of investment accounts by capital accounts

Consolidation adjustment accounts are equally amortized over five years.

6. Valuation of the assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries

The assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are appraised using the total market value method.

7. Handling of appropriation of retained earnings and other items

The consolidated surplus statement is prepared based on the appropriation of retained earnings (or disposal
of loss) for consolidated subsidiaries, which was determined during the current term.

8. Scope of funds in the consolidated cash flow statement

For cash and cash equivalent, cash and short-term investments that reach maturity within three months of
the date of acquisition, have a high level of liquidity, can easily be realized and involve little value
fluctuation risk are reported.

9. Transactions with related parties concerned

None

Important events that occurred after the financial statements were prepared.
Considering that the passenger flight demand trends have been affected by the worsening economic climate,

the war in Iraq, and the spread of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), JAL Group has decided to
decrease the number of international flights for the first half of FY2003 from that originally planned.
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The 53" term JAL Balance Sheet

(As of March 31, 2003)

(Unit: ¥ million)

Asset Liability
Item Amount Item Amount
I. Current assets [. Current liabilities
Cash and deposits 69,606 Operating accounts payable 156,813
Operating accounts receivable 151,310 Short-term loans in subsidiaries payable 6,750
Valuable securities 17,788 Long-term loans payable to be repaid within 27,606
one year
Inventories 58,031 Long—term loans in parent company payable 1,815
to be repaid within one year
Short-term prepaid expenses 6,178 Bonds to be redeemed within one year 61,845
Deferred tax assets 10,926 Accrued liabilities 24,987
Other current assets 75,841 Accrued corporate and other taxes 29
Allowances for bad debts -148 Accrued expenses payable 33,650
Advances received 25,208
Deposits received 17,083
Deposits received for air transportation 14,735
Other current liabilities 14,192
Subtotal for current assets 389,534
Subtotal for current liabilities 384717
I1. Fixed assets
I1. Fixed liabilities
(Tangible fixed assets) (836,818) Corporate bonds 217,000
Buildings 92,598 Long-term loans payable 286,983
Structures 3,702 Long-term loans in parent company 198,336
payable
Machinery & equipment 24,184 Employees' retirement allowances 91,533
Aircrafts 604,030 Allowances for losses from affiliated businesses 10,194
Aircraft movers 1,644 Other fixed liabilities 51273
Tools, equipment and fixtures 12,774
Land 46,535 Subtotal for fixed liabilities 855,321
Construction in progress 51,348
accounts
Total for liabilities 1.240,039
(Intangible fixed assets) (39,066)
Software 38,469 Shareholders’ Equity
Other intangible fixed assets 597 | 1. Capital
Capital 188,550
(Investments) (220,640) | II. Capital surplus
Investments in securities 55,502 Capital reserve 32,516
Investments in subsidiaries 97,620
Long-term loans 12,375 | I1I. Retained earnings
Long-term prepaid expenses 3,265 Legal retained earnings 1,782
Deferred tax assets 26,746 Special depreciation reserve 4911
Other investments 26,848 Unappropriated retained eamings for the 20,858
current term
Allowances for bad debts -1,718 (Of which, current profit) (18,717)
Subtotal 27551
IV. Loss on valuation for stock and others -2,568
Subtotai for fixed assets 1.096.525 Total for shareholders’ equity 246,020
Total for assets 1,486,059 Total for liabilities and stockholders' 1,486,059
equity
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The 53" term JAL Profit & Loss Statement

(From April 1, 2002 to March 31.2003)

(Unit: ¥ million)

Item Amount
Operating income 1,233,898
Operating Business income 1,233,898
profit Operating expenses 1,233,100
v land Business expenses 996,268
é Selling, general, and administrative 236,831
= |loss expenses
g Operating profit 798
Cg Nonoperating income 46,494
o ) Interests received and dividends 3,738
> |Nonoperating Other nonoperating income 42,756
g |profit
g and Nonoperating expenses 38,922
loss Interests expenses 24,274
Exchange loss 1,053
Other nonoperating expenses 13,594
Ordinary profit 8,370
Extraordinary profit 8,234
= Profit on sale of fixed assets 3,994
= Profit on sale of subsidiaries’ stocks 562
= Profit on sale of investment securities 3,677
& - Extraordinary loss 10,080
2 é Loss on sale of fixed assets 2,061
;g Special retirement allowances 1,001
§ Loss on valuation of investment securities 1,761
£ Transfer to allowances for loss from affiliated 226
H businesses
Management consolidation-related costs 5,028
Current profit before taxes 6,524
Corporate, residential, and business taxes 333
Adjustments, including corporate tax -12,527
Current profit 18,717
Retained earnings carried forward from the previous term 2,141
Unappropriated retained earnings for the current term 20,858
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Notes to Financial Statements
1. Important accounting policies

(1) Valuation standards and methods for securities

Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies: Cost method based on the moving average method

Other securities:

Securities having market prices: Market value method based on market prices and other data
All valuation differences are reported in the shareholders’
equity section.

Sale costs are appraised using the moving average method.

Securities not having market prices: Cost method based on the moving average method

(2) Valuation standards and methods for inventories: Cost method based on the moving average method

(3) Depreciation method for fixed assets
Aircraft

Aircraft, including spare motors: Straight line and declining balance methods
Spare parts: Declining balance method

Tangible fixed assets excluding aircraft: Straight-line method

Intangible fixed assets: Straight-line method

(4) Standards for providing for allowances
Employees' retirement allowances:

Allowances for bad debts:

Allowances for losses from affiliated businesses:

(5) Accounting method for lease transactions

Retirement allowances are provided for based on the
expected amount of retirement allowance liabilities
and pension assets at the end of the current term.

- Differences arising from the change of accounting

standards are equally apportioned as expenses over 15
years.

Differences arising from mathematical calculations are
apportioned as expenses over 15 years using the
straight-line method starting from the term following
the one in which such differences occur.

The past service liabilities are reported as expenses
when such liabilities occur.

The amount equivalent to the expected amount of
irrecoverable claims is reserved by using the actual
percentage of bad debts for general claims and
considering recoverability for claims feared to become
bad debts.

In preparation for losses arising from withdrawal from
affiliated businesses and other developments, the
amount equivalent to the amount of losses the
Company will have to cover is reserved for allowances
for losses from affiliated businesses (as stipulated in
Article 287-2 of the Commercial Code of 2002 before
revision).

Finance lease transactions other than those considered to see the ownership of leased property transferred to
the borrower are accounted for according to the method used for regular lease transactions.

(6) Hedge accounting method

In principle, the deferred hedge accounting method is used.
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(7) Accounting of consumption and other taxes
Consumption and other taxes are not included.

(8) Change in stating accounts

Gains from aircraft and parts guarantee (¥4,309 million for the current term) included in “other
nonoperating profits” in the previous term and aircraft and parts guarantee expenses (¥4,619 million for the
current term) included in “other nonoperating expenses” in the previous term are listed as part of the “other
nonoperating expenses” according the decision to set off the former against the latter in view of the real
content of these transactions.

The shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet for the current term has been prepared in accordance
with the Enforcement Rule for the Commercial Code enforced on April 1, 2002 (Ministry of Justice
Ordinance No. 22).

2. Balance sheet
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.

(2) Short-term monetary claims to subsidiaries: ¥75,358 million
Short-term monetary liabilities to subsidiaries: ¥60,091 million
Long-term monetary claims to subsidiaries: ¥5,385 million
Long-term monetary liabilities to subsidiaries: ¥43,187 million
The amounts listed above include those listed for the sub-items in the balance sheet.

(3) Short-term monetary claims to the parent company: ¥626 million
Short-term monetary liabilities to the parent company: ¥2,052 million
Long-term monetary liabilities to the parent company: ¥198,336 million

The amounts listed above include those listed for the sub-items in the balance sheet.

(4) Investments in the parent company (17,309,845 shares worth ¥3.963 million) are included in the
securities account.

(5) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets: ¥1,035,443 million

(6) In addition to fixed assets stated in the balance sheet, there are aircraft and other kinds of equipment
being used under lease contracts.

(7) Major assets and liabilities in foreign currency
Operating accounts receivable: ¥25,637 million
(Amount in foreign currency: US$129.731 million and)
Investments in subsidiaries: ¥28,488 million
(Amount in foreign currency: US$150.526 million and)
Operating accounts payable:  ¥20,387 million
(Amount in foreign currency: US$96.872 million and)
The figures listed above do not include assets and liabilities that are not affected by the effects of
fluctuations in the exchange rate because their value in Japanese yen was fixed at the time of settlement.

(8) Assets offered as securities
Aircraft: ¥349,696 million
Buildings: ¥75,913 million
Land: ¥37,699 million
Investments in securities: ¥19, 107 million
Investments in subsidiaries : ¥2,901 million
Machinery and equipment: ¥1,383 million
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(9) Liabilities for guarantee: ¥358,575 million
Guarantee contracts, management guidance memorandums, etc.: ¥59,874 million

{10) Contingent liabilities involved in contracts for underwriting the fulfillment of liabilities for bonds:
¥30,000 million

(11) Current profit per share: ¥10.50
3. Profit and Less Statement
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.
(2) Transaction volume with subsidiaries
Operating income: ¥55,009 million
Operating expenses: ¥254,018 million
Nonoperating transaction volume: ¥9,773 million
(3) Transaction volume with the parent company
Operating income: ¥388 million

Operating expenses: ¥2,234 million
Nonoperating transaction volume: ¥289 million
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Japan Air System Balance Sheet
( As of March 31, 2003 )

Unit: ¥ million

Asset Liability
Item Amount Item Amount
Current assets 58,924 Current liabilities 125,850
Cash and deposits 4,989 Operating accounts payable 33,023
Operating accounts receivable 23,486 Short-term loans payable 5,003
Securities 18 Lgng-term loans payable to be repaid 26,247
within one year
. Long-term loans in parent comparn
Tnventories 17,057 Davagb]e to be repaidpwithin onep Vez)a,r 30,071
Prepaid expenses 2,579 Bonds to be redeemed within one year 5,300
Deferred tax assets 237 Accrued liabilities 7,866
Other current assets 10,979 Accrued expenses payable 5,103
Allowance for bad debts -423 Accrued consumption and other taxes 2,244
Advances received 8,693
Fixed assets 357,279 Deposits received 1,594
(Tangible fixed assets) ( 324933) Advance received profit 111
Buildings 61,639 Other current liabilities 590
Structures 1,111
Machinery & equipment 6,204 Fixed liabilities 268,884
Aircrafts 251,081 Corporate bonds 1,700
Aircraft movers 823 Long-term loans payable 129,168
Tools, equipment and fixtures 2,998 Long-term loans in parent company payable 97,336
Land 345 Long-term accrued liabilities 10,484
Construction in progress accounts 729 Guaranty deposit 3,008
Employees' retirement allowances 26,835
(Intangible fixed assets) ( 3,002 ) Directors' retirement allowances 351
Software 2,697
Utility rights 129 | Total for liabilities 394,735
Other intangible fixed assets 176 Shareholders’ Equity
(Investments) ( 29,343 ) | Capital 23,486
Investments in securities 10,059
Investments in subsidiaries 2,094 Capital surpluses 2,674
Guarantee money deposited 7,976 Capital reserve 2,674
Long-term prepaid expenses 2,592
Deferred tax assets 4,950 Retained earnings -4,692
Other investments 1,763 Unappropriated loss for current term 4,692
Allowances for bad debts -94 (Of which, current loss) ( 4,692)
Deferred assets 33 |Loss on valuation of stocks and others 34
Development costs 33
Total for shareholders’ equity 21,502
Total for assets 416,237 Total for liabilities and stockholders' equity 416.237
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Japan Air System Profit & Loss Statement
(From April 1, 2002 To March 31, 2003)

Unit: ¥million
Item Amount
Ordinary profit/loss
Operating profit/loss
Operating income 338,132
Operating expenses
Business expenses 292,168
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 48.318 340.486
Operating loss 2,353
Nonoperating profit/loss
Nonoperating income
Interests received and dividends 114
Other nonoperating income 7,568 7,682
Nonoperating expenses
Interests expenses 7,715
Other nonoperating expenses 2216 9,931
Ordinary loss 4,603
Extraordinary proﬁt/loss.
Extraordinary profit
Profit on sale of investment securities 155 155
Extraordinary loss
Management consolidation-related cost 1,622
Loss on retirement of fixed assets 1,539
Loss on valuation of investment securities 184
Special retirement allowance 54 3.401
Current loss before taxes 7,848
Corporate, residential, and business taxes 63
Adjustments, including corporate tax -3,219
Current loss 4,692
Profits carried forward from the previous term -
Unappropriated loss for the current term 4,692
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Notes of the 40" Term, JAS

[Important Accounting Policies]

Other securities with market prices are valuated using the market value method based on market prices

and other data applicable on the last day of the fiscal term (differences in appraisal
value are reported in the “Capital” section). The accounting of sale costs is mainly
based on the moving average method.

Other securities without market prices are mainly valuated using the cost method based on the moving
average method.

L.

2.

Valuation standards and methods for inventory assets

Cost method according to the moving average method

Valuation standards and methods for securities

Investments in subsidiaries shares affiliates:  Cost method based on the moving average method.

Other securities:  Securities having market value: Market value method based on market

prices and other data applicable on the last
day of the fiscal term (differences in
appraisal value are reported in the
shareholders’ equity section. The
accounting of sale costs 1s mainly based on
the moving average method.)

Securities not having market value: Cost method based on the moving average
method.

Deliberative valuation standards and methods

Market value method

Fixed assets depreciation method

Tangible fixed assets:  Straight-line method

Intangible fixed assets:  Straight-line method

With respect to software (in-house use) however, the straight-line method is
used based on the expected duration of in-house use (five years).

Deferred assets accounting processing

Development costs: Important training costs relating to new aircraft and training costs
involving in-house crew training are reported, and their
depreciation method employs a method of depreciating by an equal
amount for each term over the course of five years as stipulated in
the Commercial Code.

Allowance tabulation standards

Allowances for bad debits: In order to prepare for loss arising from bad debts, the amount
equivalent to the expected amount of irrecoverable claims is
reserved by using the actual percentage of bad debts for general
claims and considering recoverability for claims feared to become
bad debts.

Employees' retirement allowances: In order to prepare for payment of retirement allowances to
employees, the amount that Ins been generated at the end of the
term is reported based on the expected amount of retirement
allowance liabilities and pension assets at the end of the current
term.

Differences arising from the change of accounting standards
(¥23,192 million) are equally apportioned as expenses over 15
years.

The amount resulting from mathematical accounting differences
apportioned according to the straight-line method based on a fixed
number of years (15 years) within the average remaining years of
service of employees at the time of generation at the end of each
term is treated as a cost starting in the following term of each
occurrence.



10.

Directors’ retirement allowances: In order to prepare for disbursement of directors’ retirement
allowances, the amount required to be disbursed is reported based
on Internal Regulations for Director Retirement Gratuities. Said
allowance is to be the allowance falling under Article 287-2 of the
Commercial Code in 2002 before revision.

Accounting method for lease transactions

Finance lease transactions other than those considered to see the ownership of leased property

transferred to the borrower are accounted for according to the method used for regular lease

transactions.

Hedge accounting method

In principle, the deferred hedge accounting method is used.

Accounting of consumption and other taxes

Consumption and other taxes are not included.

The sharcholders’ equity section of the balance sheet for the current term has been prepared in

accordance with the Enforcement Rule for the Commercial Code enforced on April 1, 2002 (Ministry

of Justice Ordinance No. 22).

[Balance Sheet]
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.

1.

2.

9.
10.
11.

Short-term monetary claims to subsidiaries: ¥8,681 million

Short-term monetary liabilities to subsidiaries: ¥6,651 million

Short-term monetary claims to the parent company: ¥89 million

Short-term monetary liabilities to the parent company: ¥30,219 million

Long-term monetary liabilities to the parent company: ¥97,336 million

Investments in the parent company (80,004 shares worth ¥18 million) are included in the securities
account.

Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets: ¥277,187 million

Fixed assets used according to lease agreements

In addition to fixed assets reported in the balance sheet, there are 29 aircrafts being used according to
lease agreements.

Assets offered as securities

Buildings: ¥51,847 million

Aircraft equipment: ¥1,346 million

Aircraft: ¥139,898 million

Liabilities for guarantee and guarantee contracts: ¥344,390 million

Major assets and debts in foreign currency

Operating accounts receivable: ¥1,214 million (Amount in foreign currency: US$7,037,000 other)
Investments in subsidiaries: ¥55 million (Amount in foreign currency: HK$3,000,000 other)
Operating accounts payable: ¥866 million (Amount in foreign currency: US$7,053,000 other)
Amount of net assets increased through valuation at market price: ¥34 million

Current loss per share: ¥214.38

Amount of capital losses: ¥4,692 million

[Profit and Loss Statement]
(1) Amounts shown are indicated down to the nearest million yen.

L.

2.

Transaction volume with subsidiaries
Operating income: ¥2,938 million
Operating expenses: ¥45,757 million
Nonoperating transaction volume: ¥374 million
Transaction volume with the parent company
Operating expenses: ¥550 million
Nonoperating transaction volume: ¥148 million

32



(Additional information)

1. Employee bonuses

In the past, the expected amount of employee bonuses for the bonus payment period was considered
accrued expenses and was included in business expenses and selling, general & administrative expenses.
With the change of the bonus payment period starting with fiscal 2002, however, no accrued expenses
occur during the current term. As a result, for the current term, accrued expenses are down by ¥3,761
million as compared to before the change of the payment period, and operating loss, ordinary loss and
current loss before tax is down by ¥3.492 million, respectively.
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4. Aircraft Owned by JAL Group

Number of Seats
Type of Aircraft Quantity or Maximum Load Comment
B747-400 (for long distance) 34 299 to 449 seats 4 of them are on lease
B747LR-SUD (for long distance) 14 350 to 483 seats
B747LR (for long distance) 12 383 to 462 seats 5 of them are on lease
B747-400D (for short distance) 568 seats 3 of them are on lease
B747SR-SUD (for short distance) 2 563 seats
B747SR (for short distance) 1 533 seats
B747F (for cargo only) 10 115 tons (max.) 3 of them are on lease
(Subtotal) (81)
B777-200 12 380, 389 seats 2 of them are on lease
B777-300 5 470 seats All of them are on lease
B777-200ER 3 302 seats All of them are on lease
(Subtotal) (20)
MD-11 6 233 to 264 seats 2 of them are on lease
DC-10-40 15 264 to 318 seats
A300-600R 22 239,292 seats 10 of them are on lease
A300 14 255 to 298seats 3 of them are on lease
(Subtotal) (36)
B767-200 3 230 seats
B767-300 22 23210 270 seats 8 of them are on lease
B767-300ER . 3 237 seats All of them are on lease
(Subtotal) (28)
MD-90 16 166 seats 3 of them are on lease
MD-81 18 163 seats 10 of them are on lease
MD-87 8 134 seats 2 of them are on lease
(Subtotal) (42)
B737-400 23 150 to 167 seats 14 of them are on lease
DHC-8-400 2 74 seats All of them are on lease
YS-11 11 64 seats
CRJ200 5 50 seats All of them are on lease
SAAB 340B 14 36 seats 7 of them are on lease
JS-31 3 19 seats 1 of them are on lease
Total 286
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5. Major Branch Offices and Customer Service Offices of JAL Group

In Japan:

Overseas:

Sapporo, Kitami, Asahikawa, Kushiro, Obihiro, Hakodate, Aomori, Akita, Morioka,
Sendai, Yamagata, Fukushima, Tokyo, Niigata, Nagoya, Kanazawa, Toyama,
Nagano, Osaka, Wakayama, Okayama, Hiroshima, Matsuyama, Kochi, Takamatsu,
Tokushima, Matsue, Yamaguchi Ube, Fukuoka, Kitakyushu, Nagasaki, Kumamoto,
Oita, Miyazaki, Kagoshima, Amami and Okinawa

Guam, Saipan, Beijing, Tianjin, Qingdao, Shanghai, Dalian, Xiamen, Guangzhou,
Xian, Kunming, Seoul, Busan, Manila, Hong Kong, Bangkok, Hanoi, Ho Chi Minh
City, Kuala Lumpur, Singapore, Jakarta, Denpasar, New Delhi, Cairo, Sydney,
Brisbane, Auckland, Moscow, Frankfurt, Amsterdam, Zurich, London, Paris, Madrid,
Milan, Rome, Vienna, Vancouver, New York, Chicago, Atlanta, San Francisco, Los
Angeles, Las Vegas, Anchorage, Honolulu, Kona, Mexico City, Sao Paulo, Taipei
and Gaoxiong

Service Center: Haneda Area Maintenance Center, Narita Area Maintenance Center

35



FRLI5E6 A 9 H
B E & N
FHHAAEARXEE _TH1S5F 15
#BXett BEAME S X7 A
REDHHRLE-CEO F T B

51 AERKEHEREEEMN

BE BTITEITIBROIELEBEURLLITIT,
ST, BBl MERKEIRS T TRICI VRV LE
TOT, THECZSWITI) TRMBLHITET,
EH. SHCHERASVWESICE, BEICK > THRE
CBITETARENTEETOT. BFREYVSETOBEE
Bz IHagtunirz, AHOBRETEEARKICEEEZCR
Ry CHEOS A, HURLISEFCESIVET LS SRV
BLBHITET, : L/ =

B ,
1. B FRLISE 6 5260 CKEEH) FaT108:
2. 1BFR R TREXECEHT4E 15
ATV —a—F—F= KEL1RK [EBOM]
3. SEOBREIE
HMEHBIE FRISE 3 AHBEOEMEEBELZ S PILE
1 B CPRL144E108 2 B2 5Tk 154E 3 A31H E T)
EEREEL L UERFMEEREOH :
REREIE
E158E £ 1R ERZOH
F25HBE ERUWEEOH
BREOEHEIIEE RIEDOTHIZONWT
OBEEE| (2EILSLTHE)ICRHBEOL S
DTHnET,
FISHEE IERIZETOH
FAEHE ELRERTOH
EESEE BEIEEICH LEREYSEEOMH

..... ‘.v
LB ZHEORE, SFML S RH Qe R B
5 SEHHICREC LA VET LS BEVBLAHITET,

_1._.



HPEDITHEICOVTDEEER

1. B EOBREOH .
1,027,821
2 MEH LUSEHH !

g£158E 1 SFENDEEIOH
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ@@\%ﬁ%ﬁFﬁlﬁﬁ%%J@%E :
ERHEOEBITHY T T, :
LHOELE IO EE LTI, A T/ EBFORREICE
O\E%%L%\ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁk%tﬁmw%ﬁ%TED
3 L7-7t mE R RE L S CURLOERRF
@%L\I%KO§%EE%4mté%fwtﬁétw&
FLET, :

) BEmE FTH—BEEOH

1. BROEHEBIOEEOEH

u)F%&&W%ﬁ%ﬁwﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁaﬁﬁwﬁwn%
ﬁa&@w—%%&m#aﬁﬁﬂ($&B¢&¢%m%%
PRI S A 1 BT S IR S L CERERO
ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁé:kﬁ%b%nt:tﬁﬁwdf
%bié%@ﬁ@ﬁ&%%%#é%m%a%%%m
%%1@31@%%%%@9%%%#56@f@biﬁo
5 7 B L OB ICEEREROEBR/T L L
ﬁ%b%ﬂt:tm%w\%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%Z
I@%%%?é%GT%UiTO&£\$%%®$%%
~AOEBIIOE T LT TORERROERARER—
HicLaEEXBTBY IV, ‘

(2) (ks 0 —HE R ET 2 HHE] (PR4FERBHU
5%ﬁ¥&mﬁ4ﬂlﬂmmﬁéﬂ\%%Kﬁ%?%l
YT 0 R34 0EEIC X ARERSRIRED
%Eﬁ%%ﬁ?é:tﬁ%b%ﬂt:&ﬂ%«ﬁ%&
%%E@%%%;b%@%mﬁi%ié%%@ﬁ%@?
E1ALE ) RFETHLOTHY I,

37 BRI ORI, BATERSE TR R
ﬁmﬁﬁ%)ﬁiw%m%(%%%mﬁﬂk)%3ﬁm
SnT. FREOEERTIDBDTHN T T, _

(3) ﬁﬁ@ﬁéhfwéfﬁ§&®ﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁj
ﬁ&%gﬁb&ﬁ-mﬁén5&$%m§§%$¥%
@%ﬁ%ﬁuﬁLf%@%&ﬁﬁﬁbé%@k%@%ﬁ
ﬁﬂménéztm%w\%%@ﬁ%(%%ﬁ?%)%
HETLLDTHY T T

RIS A K 3 SN SRR SV P AR RO IO £ e AR R S R R B P




B AREOHRILSEEOBITAL LMD EEL
A8, WRITHETAZ LW LET,

(4) BEEEROF 74 ABCBICL A J ALV —TO—fKE72

EHMEH 2 E D IV — T ORM R & A H A
ZEHAEHAH PSS JALENMIERNTLTFETHD .,
CHICHEVCBRITEZRS 3&IC0& KEOF A 2 HE
HRNXICEFETLLDOTHH ET,
B, BEOBHRITRISEETHROTFTETH Y, K
JEFMEMETORNEERIAREREZH L L. FOEHAK
BB I oW TR E|IC—EEW - WERE LTI TO
T, ZOEMBITRET A L vz LET,

(5) BATEZRMEIE 1 &BHABEICL2ETIZBLTSE %
T3 54%), 25 (BUOBEEE), £345& (BYW H
DEREOME) 12, BHBRIFICLELREHTZED:
bDTHY, ABEHFEORELZ D TREL R B0,
HIBTA55DTHY T,
F-BATERMBISE 4 & (B8R 12, BlFEkICHE
TAEBOMNEAB e EDHDOTHYH . FOHH%
BB LTwB0, HRT250TH) 5, :

6) ZOMWEXLOMEFLHVEROEEETI bOTH .
SR ,

2. KEOWE
REONEIZT, ROEBYNTHY) I,

(FRUIEEES)
AT . S
(RSB ) (A e H)
3% LRMGAFLFTHER | $35 LR AE  HEHR

B < Ri2E <o :

(Fizz HEASEORILERUEERES
B DOEROHIE)
$£74% LEHB ROEBEOVTR S
PICEBTAEPLFDORERY
FEBRELBRUERMES
BIIREF - ERHGgTAIED
BRERFLBEILBVT. £
DERIILT A EIZL RO
E=ICEBT A BEOE T AEIUE
DEEDSUEHOBIED 35
DILEREDLEIEERDL
L FORERUVERTHRE




£ B R

LERVERAKILEIRET
73T A ERIELLOL
Th,

(1) BXOEgEEZAELRVA

@) NEXSEOLLEREEL
LT NICHETAELD

3) WEOESFKESVTEILS

hiEAZ OtOFME
(BRI (RRABURAR )
5746 MAHOBHHHHECLAH|HEE LAHOBRAFEC L 5%
Pt £ O OB EEDITEFIC P 2 D OBREROITREFIC
Y 2 R, B OBEE. B B A AR, R OTER, HX
RUFHFRENLERTR.E RUFHTOEOEHRERE
Bk T 2B~ DRBRIILEE. HhRE A R U R
BT MR OB RUTEHE ~ORBITEE BRI

L. BHEOEERR UK. #3F
DERT EEHEORRRY
HF OB R VR T #9HE
ZRET B BV R OVFEERNL.
COEHOIEL HEREICS
WTED B ERIURHRIC &
5o

ADOBW Y RUTHE L EED
BHBUKE., REOFRETT.
=M EOFTRRUREEZ OM
BB U TRRICET A
TR UFEEHT, 2 DERD
ESBRERRCBVTED S
BREABERANIC L 5o

B84 (FXEW)

94 (BiTLsY)

(# % H)

%925 ENERERICBVTENE
BT~ EBRELEE 3 ASL
HEEOKRELERUERRE
i\ RESUS SRS NERR
AETAHKELT 5o

2. MARUVEBEEDLHE
DI EENIEEELLT
R A AHETREBEED AT
DITLENH B & &3 R
SOWBIIEIN.HOPLOR
ELTEEAZEDLIENT
x5,

(# # H)
$10% GTEBY)

2. FERUFENRCED BEHE
O, BREXIZHEERLLT
R AT TREERED DT
DITLENH D & & T IR
LSOBRBILY . HOEPLDR
L THEEEEDSIENT
&5,

(LBEBRABEN)
#1054 LA HRICoAEE
BABATE
2. ABBBRABARVZOHE
BRI AT I3, BRI S OHRERIC
FnBEL. chEnET 5.
3. L& OELBRUELDR

(BHEERMAEN)
#11%  GTEBY)

2. BfTEBY)

3. YSHOKTEBRUEER

_4_

v
*



FITER

xE X

FREIE IR T HERE

ERE FHRT AR BRI

2. L HSBRAEBAOHEBIR HAEEEZHE L AR TR
BETICHE 2 B & BRI R Uk BAOEBHEUREHT K 28
FHEOREER . B RiEk B BRARUHHRTOEORE
KOBIY RURE L., F04 FM BB ELZHRE~NORR
BARUFHRTAORICETAE XIT 5ok, B R AR O B EL
B auxTFRABAMCENER D RUFEL,FOMBEARY
bhe Y&icBnwTiiohg FHRTHECETAEREILA
Y /b2, HFHH/ATAIEY FebH, Y
: SHcBwTRIhER DD
2V, ‘
$£115 #12%
§ (G ER) § (BiTEBY)
124 #13%
(ReEFE) (BB H )

Fl3F BRIRSOPRBITEFNE
ZDERIIHEDEDDH 55
AOEPI BE L RFEOE

145 HRERSOERIT ESIG
CDERIZBBEDOED DD A
EOEIMEBE LR EOE

PHEDBEELEE b - TIT I, REOBEHE D >TT ),
(Fraz) 2. BEEUILOHEEILL AN
SHERIT BT DOBRIUED 3
T 1 EEETARESHRE
L. 20BN 30 2L E
FLoTINEITH,
E14% #B15% _
§ (GUEEs) § (BiTEBy)
195 8205
(B8 (AR ORERE)
215 USi, BEE65E12

BOBEIL L) B EREOH

FErD-o T MEEIHESH
DITA T 2R (%
THoltEExEglh,) OEL%
ESUEDAREIBTER
THEIEMNTED,

2. &, BES2065%519

CHoBEIL L ) AR L
DEIC. FEE 1EESEDT
B AEEREETELEET
LEME/HETHILEITSE
5. BL., MFHEMITET I
EREFTOREHIT ESD
EHDLEET D,

o
S
i




BATER E B E
205 (SR3rEmE) 8224 (BITEBD)
(BE 1% ORI HER) (BEHHORETHRER)
F21% FIEHE IHOBER EEX | 8235 £1748 1 HoBAER EX
BICHERT A, RICERT 5,
F2% LIS
$ (%) § (HiTEBh)
#24% $26%
(Fra% (BEBROFTERE)
278 UL, BEESIES L
HO¥RT 2 FEE260658512
BEORZEIL D R REDHR
ErboT. BEEREART
bol:Zrst.,) OFEREYE
FUEOLREIBCTRET
LILENTEDL,
825% ‘ 285
§ (%rges) § (BiTEB0)
ENES 8304
ORI B AU
(BABEIC L 2RI LTRITY
B
#1454 YEHomkrid, BHEE34 JIR)
FOMABEIZL B,

2. BEHOBTIIRLTETT
LHE OB BT EE %R
1,980, 465, 2508k & UF H A fi 28
HAKHORT L 2R R
35 ERI4E4 A 1 B2 bk
REBEGH H OB B T Tl
DITFL & ) RAT S B ERHE
KL M OL-EHROEET L
T5,

BRUDEREE)

F2% LURHOW L EEEERI,
SHBRIOH 2 HFHISE 3 A
3IBETET 2,

(HUER)

iir

S B g RO B A ST TR

LA




BATES EHE
(BRI DERE 0L
F345 BSHORMOERZOER| (HIk)
B B2R2&DHTE PP LL T,
B 1 ERORROBERIC
B 5 ERBRTRSREORT
T‘&Téo
(k) ’
g4 LeHoBTTRERRTET | BIR)
ZHEEICL AFEHERIBETS
EE(EO6LEIH,., $74%.
FEI0REIF) LoV T, F
WRIGE4H IR LY e &
LadbnEd 5,
(Frae) (FJEDBE)
FlEk USHOKEFEMIBRTL
TE(FEIR) IIonTiE, F
Bil64E 3 ARA I TSR
LEERECBCTHRETAE
EREZRE» D> T3 %EL
5L0LT D, '
(Frex) NBEASORIEERUELARES

E~ORBOHIR)

F£245 UAHONEAZOKILE
RUEEHELE~DEEDH
FRICEET 280 (B 75%) 2
VT MEEO—EYRET
B (REMEEREEE ORI
SHICOX EMSINEERE
TEOABEDOHBERD ) E
BTSN AR I VRS
LabDET A,




FISHE BRRISBREOHG
RERGERISZ T, ARSEBEOREZ S - TR T &
TN ETOT, BEHRISADZREET BEV W LZWERF
LI, |
ZTOBEMEIL, ROLBYWTH) I T,

FRIBE6 R EHEUHR
FRI4EI0R  LHEHIEER (HE)

FETH | BHED
gﬁz R:(EEEB) % BRERCHOSHORERR | YHOH | IO
KO® | EHE
BRHI3S4E 4 B HAMZHASHEAL
FHIL6H FHBHE
FRTECH FEBEImR
o : pap | PROE6A EHEBRAE
1 |3 F B | BRI10£6 5 ERMUERSREE 254078 | %L
CEO ()
FRISEAA BEMEHRASHRE
BEREE (BE)
BAM0E 4 B BAERKEHRSHAM
Lh 2t bl wa | PROESA FHIUER
2V W O 4T EERE4R EREERER 17,0008 | %L
(RS 1 Frogs) | THABE 4R BB (RIE)
FHIEIR  SHBBIEHE (RUD)
A4 4 A EHEAE
o br L ob |l gginee B O BRASHAARIT 2
R
3R AR R {? N 3,6008 | %L
(BAIF2ASBE) | FRIBEE A FHEBTHR (BUD)
W43 4 B BEMLERRSH AR
FRI0E6 A FHEGER
L on se ey | PRIBEAR FHEEREGHRGRE)

4 |78 F K F]| FRUEIOE SEBWEREGHUD 14,0818 &L
(A21g 1 Aoop ) | [BOSHORKIKE] ’
R 2 TR R T

KRENGRHE
A4 A BEERMERR S
AR
FHROES A HRAUAXIT VAT
<h [(£4°) P Fod LEELESERE
5 H 4, 600 L
B8 Hosieon munseamey | 2% | %
(WAIBE 1 B3 H&E) SEEE

ARSI H




7| (£4£A8)

BEEE B UM 0 &t DRI

RETS | HHLD
LH O | FHOF
A0HK | Bk

WA 72 55

E¥:) ¥ 2
Ao JERER
(BBF21E107 128 &)

HEFI46%E 7 B
946 A
FH11E 4 A
FH1246 B
EE144108

A BRSNS AL
Rl EE R
FEHHITRR
AL AL
L3 B (RAE)

[fbo &t DAREIRIR]
BREH YL Y—T N

REWMEFRAIE

BREMH Ty VY ET L

RELFELE

ALIVE INSURANCE PTE.LTD.

REBG

TRIPLE A LIMITEDA{ RIVAR{%

6, 0008k 2L

# A F R

(BBAN174E 2 B 9 B4&)

BRFIA0E 4 A
FHIESL A

FR1F 6 A
FE124 3 A
FR13ES A
FH13F6 A

FRE144E10R

HEMERAKTAL

BASHBFLT VR |

7 LEEATRIRE
BALHN-VI 1Y
7 RENFGREE
BRAHBELT VA
FAR=FT T4 VTR
HoBER

B EBRRE
FHgfT R

(3R BRERE
LR (RE)

5, 500%% 7L

B L ‘T%
= #f =

(lBF21E4 R4 BE)

BRH4E 4 R
TR 7 E12R
FH13F4 A
FR144F10A

BAMERASH AL
FHEE R
BHHTRE (RE)
LR RIE)

6, 7828k ZL

% i &Qé
# =1

(FEf0114E 2 A 5 B4&)

BEHI3BE 4 A
BIF0624 6 A

FH3IE6R
FH5%46A
ER9F 6 A
FH134F 6 A

F14410A

AR MERRAREAL
HEEERMEHRA ST
18T
BREHERLT VA
7 LB BIRAEE

Bl BB ER
EHIGE R E
FHARDGHE R
(3RE)
LHIUFEEILRE
(JRE)

13,6648k | &L




(£4£H8)

BER b SH OREKIKE

FEYT B
Lok
RO

E LA )
R OF
EB%

10

IRE B E

(RRF184E | F23E &)

BEFI404F 4 A
T T46R
FlI11E6 A
FRIE4R
FIR144E6 A
EH 144108
FRI5E4 A

BAMZEHA S A
FIH A%
[Cikant s 25¢ 704
At E B
FIHAERAREI &
LR ()
BEMZEHEARMIAE
B E (HE)

41, 0408k

ZL

11

i"#‘ oy femL
W= F
(FRFI74E 7 H27R %)

MBF404E 4 A
FHOEGA
FH12E 4 A
FrRi134 4 A
FH4FE6 R

FE144E108

BARMERN ST AL
R BT

Bl & B IRER

FI S B
EHARNBREL R
(BfE)
LR )

12, 155%%

zL

12

B ¥FrorL &
iz R 5

(BBAN164F 8 A22HE)

HRAI404FE 4 A
FHTE6 R
Fri12%4 A
FHI3EE A

FHRUESL A

BARMZEHASHAH
B R AR

B HEER
BRT VT MERAE
HAEZPHRILE
BRE Ty -0
ARy b= 2 {EER
wRA R (RE)

(FRI4E10F 4 BBERSH Vv vt
— N ARIHEER)

12,615%

zL

13

;5 » Lei _L‘
P G
(BM24E8HF 1 Ba)

246 A

FRBE6 A

FHIE6A

FR13E6 R

14 10A

R B ARG

RIRENHFEHE
FHARBHREE
H A s S
& (EEi154 6 268
BEFE)

R L KRB
STAMHESR (RE)
LHIEER (HE)

[ &t ofFERR]
MY LT FHRA SRR

2,000t

ZL

LT Fo

YRR R I

by
X

VAR



L2HED
F R OF
EHMR

p@E| K %
& 5 (EEA)

ﬂ%ﬁ&m&@%ﬁ@ftiﬁiﬂ

BRH6LE 8 A Ao A v PHAE
REDFREE

SERY 6 108 s a0/ EBRASHAL
FRERER

TR 86 R Bl U AR R

FR10E10A KT A v PHRAR
HMERARRTE

FRIE6 A B A R AU
% (EHI5%E 6 AZ6H
BEFRE)

FRI2E6 R K A v PERAR
g GRE)

FR14%10R LR UE)

4 5 B

(#0134 4 A2BBE)

WAHIS64E 6 A HEEBHERAET
B
WHIE04E 6 A RS BB
iEAI625E 12 B B SRR
TR T#E4 R AR ERE TR
TR 946 R pASHEARTT VA
7 AWHE (R
ERLI3E6 A wE e At
fEDHEEEGE
F144610A A EEE (R
o otk
%i%ﬁxu—ﬂvFVVF777
KRR E
e apEait oA R

‘l:-i:‘. E%) LL’)_}::
& 7K i~

(BB%D(SFFZHZSEE)

A, RS L K TR 188458 2 BUR T B ) 2 ED IS
R OB Ez L T8 ET.




F45EEX BEERCBRION

REEER 6L, ARSEHEORZ > THEH@WT &

D FETOT, BERR6ZORBRETBEV VLW EFF
L¥Ed,
B, KERICOXF LTI, FOERERESOEELE
TBH T3, ’
FOBEREIL RKOEBYTH Y F T,

K %
(#%£58)

BE IR T U D 3 OANZARR

AT
EfadolzS
KOH

L ED
BHROF)
ERE

EX b T /sl

=R - S

(BBF11746 6 R 148 &)

BRFI404F 4 B
FROF6RA
FRI1E 6 A
FERL144E10A

BEMERR ST AN

FHBEEERRER
EREEEEAR

LHEHEER (58
HAMZERASHER
= &Em

23,450k

zL

v EL W

]

(BBFIIS4E 9 B 6 B&)

BEFI384E 4 B

FROF6R

FHI34E 6 A
FH144E10

LEAMERREH
A#t
HRNEHARLT P2
7 b BURER
IS B 1

LM BFEERSL (F)
BAEHAFIT X
FLEER (RE)

5, 4008k

=L .

3] W _LJZ’ ]
LA S S
(BRAN194E 7 A 150 4)

BifI424E 4 B
FHIEGA

PRI 6 A
FR124E 3 A
FR12% 4 B
FRI3E3 A
FH13E 6 A

PALI410A

B AR S AL
Rt v R~ NFE
B
HALY - ABREHF
BRI

R RERERLE

H# V=TT 7 A4 F
v A Mt et S
%
HALY — ABASHI
i
BAREHR S S
BER

LA SR (%)
OARZERASHES
% (B4E)

4,000k

zL

nooB e E)
®E i =
(BaFN194E 3 A 8 B2E)

BEM41E 4 B
FH9F6 A
FRI2HE4 A

FRI2E 6 R
FH13E 6 H

TrR144£10A

HAMEHRR S A
FEHELAE
A7 I7REHRAE
H B

[F1#L BU TR
BAMZEHRNSHES
EER GRE)
LHEERE GE)

13, 812%k

L

PR

4
&

i




FAETA | Bl
BEEE R U0 i ORFRR Lt okt | FFIOF]
A0 | FHR

FRIENR WEENHRASHAR

TR
FROESA HTEANEEEAS
SBIZE
FRIOEG R EAMEHRSHERS
(FH154%6 A 26 BBfE
Ha ©F il_k -3 %%) )
5 1Bk = FmlEs s wmEammemas | 0 | *F
(W16 4 9 B1084£) L4E ()

FR1Es B BAEEIHFASHAR
BRRaR (R

FHIES A KRBT OIEARR
RHEREE (RE)

ERI4EIR SUEER (RE)

FHR5E6 A HRESHEREHEHET
L RBUS R BIRR

FH8E6H FATHRERAMRIEEN

THI2E6 A AEMEHRSHEER
(FR 154 6 B 26 BABE
FE)

L bh & B pRiggh HAKHATIER-V

6 |/ A 1E s o sz | OF ZL

(BEFI 7 £11A 180 &) &E (%) #eHn

' A B AT AT IR
BANL

PRU4EL A ATETAFYUTN
7 h— 7RIS

FRIAEI0R  LHEER RE)

ﬂMéﬁBiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu%ﬁ%ﬁw%ﬁ%uﬁ?%%E@ﬁ%ﬂ%?%ﬁﬁ
51854 1 HIED DHABEROBEHETH) T,

ms 2 BEIARESICHUBREBMFEEEDNH

KB LIBIEDR® b - THEIATE 712 X 0 BRE SN DB
BRBEERRB L CBETERICHL, ZOEEFOFHIC
D n, UHORBICETE, HLYEOHEARNICEY
CTEBBYELPMETLIILEL, FOEGNREHE. BB
o, FEZICo 5T LT, BEREIC T —EEW

7z (‘: X:;;‘ C i ‘?;-o‘

BEREEOBEIL, ROEBYTHY T,

K & B HE
o8 F B | FRUUFI0H SHARBEER RE)
Ho& F ¥ | ERMEI0R YUHEWRERE (3R4E)

Lok

L

S AR TR S RGN

¥
3
3
I3
A
I
f



1 EEHKERESSHEIEAR

HER T B XA HET
RTFNVZoa—F—¥F¥ =

J RS

T SH DI FILAR
H T SR ST AR

BT ERE R PIRR. LR
T ERAL DI EREERR

4F15
AfE 1R [EBom]

Ny BAERTHE
TH Y BFER T E
HETER T

& HHETER T B
FIR B HER T B8

By S

ZH{RmvER|

o=

72EW,

KELE

OFFTYLZIFKFN

Ead. 3:4
Tomn g BT Ok BETER

]
5.

OFREHRB AT NV

BEL A TSRS . AR EAD (RSB £ ZFEC

£/, MARSEEDERS SUBESOREN FES

NETOTC.HETOIRBR BB LS,

!
2
A
“
v
8
<
&
B
e

B T e




(58 1 BIERHERSRE CBNANESR)

%1 HHEE

[SIZ)ﬁME]OH 2B»5
EISE 3 A3IHET

®EHRE B
g F i B X
B % s EFE
F &® &L 5 F

LTINS R

EERSEENEERE

HREH BTEMEIATL




ERESE  monw

1. BXOBLR

MBI IN—TOEEDEAS SURE

VO AARZEIL, EREEOTATEREERI ST 50
T, XIERFEO—FICBHLE LI BB o b
DO, ERIEE. FfERE L QIR E L TR LWIRIEASE X |
ENEE BEEDITRL R E B EREBLVINTICH Y T L7

DX BHWRD D, BRSNS OUF [JAL)
ROWHREHBAL T V274 BT ] AS)) 314
£ 6 ROBRERRIIBNT, REOERD O TEAE W72
X, 4E108 2 H, MR BRI & ) St ettt
HAMZEY AT L) BTS¢, $ik [JALZV—7] $%
Bz LE L7z

[JALZ V=71 &, eI AR BAEREL, F
B - ERRED/NT V AD E NI shE IR A R X R
DIy T ADMEEETN—TE A L% BIRLTEY
T, #OERIZMT, BARN RSV LELT. TJAL
INV—7] OFEREFERICHERGE Ly MU -2 DHFR, B
FEE ORI ROBLE D O M B E~OHEE, JALB
L] A S OBBOERSTIZ L BEEBBOME. ¥4
DWER EETVT LT,

SHITMAT, ' |

OFEBRTTFRHANDEEFIERIC L 28—t

OFATREGRORE - FfE%1T) FRHOAIC L 2 ERE. H

M 1 HRsHE

OEMRTF AN DEFHIENIC X A EB—TTL

OMANB & PEERROEMIC L 0 SRS O/

®&wl - ) - ARTEHEHOEH




EFFEERBTMOSE
g RFEORSINERID #A, HAMREOFHERIZE DT
FnhE L7

F72. w4 L= - TOY T AOREELHGTHHIERC l%
sege SELIZHEE, 7T v 8 o a) OFA, BETY
A VORI, Sy r—3 - V7 —RGOT T Y M5, 77
VN HRRKRILT AN —TT T Y MEREBEL, BotHS
FEIc D T L,

JALBIU]ASOYAFAEAICOEE LTI, L6
£ 4 BOERRICANTC. BE S T OEEMRER L FIEEOR L
B TR EICER AT £ LB IC, FNETOMIZDSE
LTh. —SFHo—Teitss, TaeRR)HeY —E AT il
WwieLE L7z,

TNLOREE, YO 7V — THEEERE GERE TR 1T
EEEARESH T 1Ko X LT, B TERENR 2
Jk83EM, Tk Y. EEAZRI05EM. FEFER158E M.
WHEARES 16 & 2 ) T L7

ZOnHT, ] ALBREEILEECERR. BENRT e
7 R OREE BT, 0% B 01211841775 &
Vo kT EENSITRIES. 5% 1 Jk2, 338E M, Znl
b EERE 7 . BEFIEssEM. LEFIEISTEML
7 E L7

7 A 'S Bk I BE CEB. EPRURESbERE. K
WP D IRBE R T RTRAL2. 2% D 14481, 46575 h » - F 1,
BEITRIIRTLILG. 2% K3, 381, ZHuzk b, BEREK
23f8H. BERL6MEM. LEAESRAEHAE Y T LT

B ORI OEFLTE [JALZ V=T DEEIZBY
Cit. [ReEROREE | PREERETH L Z LAY IR
(. = TR ST ) FORERRRD [ReFE] L L
THIEL. COBEDD L, Fh—T R o TEEEI
B HEATENY F L7,

E
{
§
!
!
|



FELEESTO ZO—FEROIEEFORTIZOEF LT
BUTOEBY TT,

(i) JAL
EFARRE

—REE 9 FICREKET uSFOBEI L YRS L E
BEORHNIE L. RHTEEERMARGROBRILOF T
DY THRTEIEL, UTO L) 2fis i rEmA - L
L7

HHLEEETIE, 4 A X VAR S N A EiEE
BEERATALRE, RRELHRULIERICT Y Ko, %),
eI B, VSR COMME FERAR & LT/ 184 A).
B (6 A) #BREWLE L7z, E5(29 AifThhizH
PATZERHNT & D IR L2 TS A R L. AR T
(ZBAREND S R ELI0EH O R EAFEOPERKRE R v b
T— 2 RN LT L,

BEETE, FHEEOREZPJASEDI—FY 27D
EALE MG L7 2 LI 80 BRI R S R ERICH 7 A
. 7THEY [TJAL NEW CHINA] BXUTJAL
VUAACHINAL v r~_—r%BEL. HiLWhEDA
A= VBB L ABOGHEEEE, FriisL LTOEIAAEE
BGR(CBOFE Lz, T2, Yy h—BREOTR—F 1 7
H ==, LT, 5 AERPS 7 AREOM, HE7—IV KA
v 7EELEEREAL, 102513, HBACEATTAL
fBZ2] 2 [JASAR—/S—Ry 7 A | QAT ETEEE L&
EHEZRET AR EOMBREEAVLE L,

eEVARIIODEF LT, A V7 -3y bOFIH{EESRE
BEL7Z[JAL e-styledFyoR=r]%211A25
ETALEDIZ, 2APSIFEF—LR—YT]JALTA L~
NI RBORE LT, TRTOBES THEEEDOTH -
BEANTELLNIIRNTE LA, CHODEDHAIZED ., e
Fx 2@ U7 ] ALEBBOFOE, siELR 2 oMy
*RLE L7,

Lo Ledss, EHOFEEE, KN, NI/ du0I




KEF OEAEORENTRL AT, BRIV THER
R B AREINREEAMPUMA /20, KE T nFEOEE
Ah o HiA L% I ET ) T Lz 2 THIZOWT
1. SRET DEEOREY S ( 2o TEIZD DD, FROBX,
)N EFOEHE 10H), ZF7L06E (128) na, 4177

BT AREBEDY A FARRAM A 722 LI BT

%ﬁ\ﬁﬁ%w%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁbfﬁbibtﬁ\3HK47
2t U CRIHES B X 2 2 LIS K DERIZS HIET
L. FTHISHTIIRI 2 8i03% $ CRTW 2 LE L7,
ZOER REEOBRERIZL2TGAANL 2D, BT
7. 1% TH -7 b DD, FAHHTIE6. 4%, IAREIHL
7.0%38TH 72 b DD, FixH3. 5% 06, 141EH & &Y
F L7

ENRKE

7 B X ) EZeEonEn L SE R EE L, Rt EE
FLTWAELL B, ISR 3 ERAERE AL 108

OISR D MHEREORE, T-REIEhE))
B BB L ) Ry N — 2 QS EFIEEDR EE
M. PO ECEDE L7

e, [biE ). (R 7 EREY v - OES
210AH5 JAS LOEMER~ A L—ViEriiaL[ JAL
. ] ASEP 3 <A VEy =) REBLZIED BE
s [N—rr 7 7)oz, [] ] B SraiieER
habed ptkE EEHSRICEH A &L DI, FICRAERICS
W, BRREE A REMICEET A Z IRV HE ML
2R T L7

S 7. BTN FA v TEREREboL% ST EREE
TVELEDF ¥ — & —FRE 7 LE L ZO/RR, &
BRI, 8% 72, 081 A A& & o7z b DD, PUABMEA
T L7720, PUIRTRAL. 4% kD2, T69EH e = Y L
726

R I

R T i T

NS F A I NN e e g



EFELREY

BED 7T — SEDSER, BRAEHREE HIEH T MZERY)
OFIEAHELEDTETWA I EICE ), FHEELTERTE
XA LR EEIIAHE L bRIEERY LY | MERCHER
W LE L7 BchE R U E$H T VTN, KNEL
13 T T RIS EBIE RS % IR 7 LT LT

Tk RRRoOR, BEEETIE, 5 HICEDERAEE 105
HEIE L. TR EEICHBLTEND I L,

PEERT TR, 4 AL 118, 2 A LEBRmICE L Ll
g 4 F 7 G 1efE L7-deEl, LIERREE, 6 AICHR
B b LR LR - EPREE, 51239 APOR
i L7 ROERIEMES, W —u Yy Ky =T AATIVSY
LgefEs Y SEEIOHIET 5 ) A THRIBEIEE ©
To2enTEFEL,

PSS CIE. 4 B DIEkOEEA Y — NERIEY A
FATHIZ T, Mo s M & X - BRI
WA T AR IS 2 8L 0, EEA Y — N EHkdn
B OTE TV MG % 8 2 2SR a1 D . HBIPUIED
T L7

T DFER A EIIRTHIL10. 6% D42(81, 15T b v -
o, IUASHIEA LS. 7% 801, 4528 & & ) L7

ERREY

EPHERARIC & 2 28I <. BTSRRI R AT
geipfbiz X 0, SR % LIS OMEREA e LA
BAALECE LS, BEMEAREBE ) LI JOM
B s YR, 3% O 2 (83, 94205 k¥ - FHEUA
SHIEALL. 4% RO 1THER & %2 ) T L7,

Z DOty

REEZ I B LT, BiRv LT LAE By, FVv—T&
KOFEO—IBY LT, 254 5HEONEOBENIL, F
EOER - HEEHELEDTIVDI IS




(i) JAS
EERRE

&E%%@E@ﬁ%wﬁﬁﬁ%mébﬁﬁﬁ§%#6&5?
%m%ﬂ%ﬁ%b\E%ﬁ\éﬁﬁ%ﬁm§%%%K%E¢6
tt%uiﬁﬁ%%%i“¢ﬁ%ﬁ®%vbv~7%ﬁ¥é%\
ﬁ%ﬁmim%wibtoﬁﬁ—éﬁﬁmogipfm\EW
@i T, JAL b s DA EATVL 10A D PV NR
72LFE L7 ,

:@%%a%ﬁ%ﬁuﬁ%Rlewwm%ﬁkt&h\Wl
IFRTHALEL0. 39 160EM L %Y ER YA

- ERRRE

,7ﬂibmm§%®%mbt%%%%ﬁﬁt\%ﬁ\%mﬁ
%;E%E8%ﬁ%ﬁﬁb\ﬁﬁ%%#%%ﬁ@«@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ»
ﬂ%&@ﬁﬁ4%%amwtbibtoitﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁbf
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%@%ﬁ%%ﬁb\~%®%ﬁ%%é@%@@ﬁ%
%«@%ﬁ%ﬁw\i%%@&%&%ﬁtﬂﬁﬁwmh%mb
T L7
é%K‘ﬁ%?%ﬁ@%@b%@b\%ﬁﬁﬁmmtf%
. EEL Mt O A ERIIATV R L7 FTHEROE, &
%ﬁ%mwaALtwﬁﬁﬁﬁfmﬁ%~\f%%@&%%
Ao, FIEEORE EICEDE LTS |
ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁ@fJJ@ﬁ#J@%%@Fﬁwb
“%HLVﬂ-zf—%mj%%mﬁﬁa:am;b\~%®'
%zﬁﬁmﬁ%mh‘%Eé-ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%kbt
leSfﬁ<¢%%v7N~xL7H#%9Emmawﬁ
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁbtf%%JASN47V—F%V7N—7J%
%mb\JAS%%ﬁﬁ%&@773U~%mH%&®W%
%E%Ebibtomﬁwﬁ%uﬁwﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%KO§
ibfﬁ\]AL'JASE%%AQbﬁtZ%—V7~&E
f]AL°]ASﬁ€ﬁ%77*J%ﬁ&b\ﬁﬁﬁﬂé%&
ZFIFRE I EDE LT
_74V~9-7D75Amo%ibfm\MHiD]ALt

6




EPRE~ A L— VIRERRIG L, BENRA Y b7 -2 T K
2] ASYAL—UH—EAKEOfMERm EICNZ, JAL
<A L=INV I EBO ] ASEFRYREN-LEL £
72 JALEERTIJAL - JASERNRIBETANVF YV
~—v| BERL, BEEOWREFRY L7

PLED X1z, BT REES EEOFR IR Lo L Lz
EEE s IR AT o 7213, FHEEOm EZR) L
25, BEEOBLIC X VIUEMATE L, BRE LT, BRE
UL 4% 2, 078 A L 72 0 L UKIERTEALLS. 2% i
D2,915EHER Y T L7

ERS S |
EMREOEERIC BT, EIREEOBEYERCZLEL
P, B — BRI D0, KL RITRTEH10. 8% i
13,8847 F > - 0, UAAETHILIS. 7% W3 EM & %2 1
T L7 '

ENIREY
EIPRFEANRIC & A BB A T, fZeEWins T Rb 51
FRALIZ L Y, BEY b —E TR EERRICBAT L S L e B
L0, EEMERICHERC L LE L, ZORR, RixsER
FIEALLO. 4% %> 1186, 32105 b > - F I LALIRIMILA. 2%
WO 16118 & %2 D ¥ L7

) B OBEDOEBS JURR

HIJALZ V-7 ORRIZHIZY, TTHOIZIN—T
L LCORARNLEL S THD [RERE] b UNHRZH%
TN—TE L TOBREERETH HRENDR Y MADER%
EHD [ HeEE| 2UToL ) ichlEvzLI L,

[EEIRZ |
JALGI—TI3. BEHHIMEEEITN—-TELT. &
TAxFE b, FLTIZA%RS. ARCHRAOFFEEE




KICER L E T,

Te - REERELTEKLEY
BESEOHERNSRBL. TEILET
PEMEORAEEEY) 7
TETROERERLET
BhekEge R LET

.U'I-lhy)l\)—‘

[ZeFTE]
LREMIL. J AL TI~TOIRESETHY HESEETT,
JALIN—TRREMROEGERLT D, BEDHEL
BELHE-A—ADELSOBRECEFNEHENS &, HEE
ERENDERY 2R LT, —B—EOEMEREISETLT
WEET,

BHETAL, JASEOEBMSHE LT, FV—T72K0D
BV R EBRORBES ZIT) L & bIT, ZT—T— .
POEE T TORERHOER O TEND T Lz,

BRI SHE JAL, JASFhPREDOBT e
P X O ERE RSN SAHEL. ThoHEAH o
L, LHEEERLITHIRREED L

FEfRIZ. JAL. JASSFEFESHOTEM - BESH
IZDEFILTH, F—TREOBEINIL, YHAED s
ZinoTJAL. JASEWNEYLREETEBAITI L EWw:
LE L7

Fro, FBESHTHE AL, JASORETE. RRE
BEOTEICOE T L UL, [J ALV~ T |ehoEsshE
@ﬁiéméﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁmf~ﬁmhﬁbzatwttib
f:o

]AL%AﬁfﬁotﬁiAﬁ/&wk—wx B
TAﬁ/%w#¥t9wmﬁcO§iLT JALZV—T12
ﬁwf%@&%%~%m’w T Db, éﬁ@ﬁ%@Aﬁ«

BETHZEERFENLE LI
u@i?&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂi# ﬁz(ﬂﬁﬁ)éﬁ@ﬁ




R K e T I S T 5 st s e S e s T e ) e T i iy e . AT o L i
FAR R S R N B R s M VPR D 0 s R S I A AR g e L i e e e U e S Bt bt £ D T e T i o

BEhL, YHOFBOMEBRE 2T ] AL, ] ASE0HESH
OEEHZDONWT, [REE) (Mo RXR¥—-JL— g X/
MELE) 2EERIAToTEVnD F L,

S BIZHHITTRLSE 2 A0 ICERHRERS T RIEL &
FEFEOFIICB L TITEAR e W22Z&, 3A24HZ b
T, 89818184751, O15M % EREMEEIE D b £ DMEARFIR
EEIENEATVIZ LT LT

DD &) EEFNMIELA AL, JASWHD2LD [#
EIRER L O ERES] OTFEEB L UBRNERESIC L
0. SHIOREL, EEEEIMEM. BEFIE 4 THH, L5
M2 1+ 1EamEHeEeY E L,

Wit B LU T I — TH NS~ 22855

SEOARZEORBLICIDET LTL, F7LOE, &
SEHEDEN: &, Mk E L TR LIRS b0 L BEbh
T3, MEERICENTLTD, 41 77 ORIATHE, EEE
HIHESHEBRERE (SARS), Bl ANRFICL A EEOKIER
WAL EEDENPREINL L, BB LU0SEH I N—T
&N CIEEREIL. B, BERFRE L ITBROTRLYD
DEFEINTT,

DX BRRRO b, BHIIERESI L LTV — Tk
DFSEB LN — TOREMEOTRARIL 2 Fag s L, 7 —
TEEE, BRES WNEE). BESHOBESAHESTEN
DF9, —F, BEASHIIREERORR:, EEMEOREL
FAT, 7= v NEBROI R EF T, BESFEOR L EGED
WAALEHELTTF D) T7, .

FEL ALY TN —TREDES S DI NB /20D, 7V

T EOEAREETH AR, EE B A Y b,

S S C (Shared Service Center,” 7' )V — /I BEHEEELEOE
). I BB EEE O RS OET LR L L., FNF
NOEFEEBIIBWT, EEEEE > CGEETAEEIE WL




REBRSE (T

Wmmgmmm R

. R e A

H [ mUREETIN-TEE ]

naﬁmvmxvﬁﬁﬁm‘
Llf\xwﬁﬁ

‘?JG],UC—)O 30IAI8S pajeqs)osa

%ﬁ@ﬁmmmuF]AL?»—fJ@¢E%@%ﬁ%&ﬁ
E%%&?étbu\iﬁﬁwF%%E@%%J@&%Eﬁ#
%@T@&<J%§éi$f%%kaXLFA%J%LT

(ﬂ%@®¥%]®40®ﬁ§#%%iﬁﬁﬁ%%5t&%5'

BAED, B%Fﬁwi@ﬁﬁ%éf%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬂjﬁﬁuﬁ%ﬁ)\b\
NT Y ADENTARERHEBEL TV T,

kbe\ﬁ%éiuﬁbfw\ﬁﬁm§%bf£§éi®
ﬁﬁuzotﬁ%-%~ﬁx%%&?élk%\7ww7§%
TEHYHATEND T,

BRI IZ BV T, s 7 ik A DY & RROBRILE

M5 7 ROz AR % ) SR R

B REsEE A Mo TEV D T,
%%@ﬁﬁmﬁmfm\ﬁﬁwﬁgmw\]AL\JAS%
@%ﬁ%%%&§%$%%ﬂaﬂxm%§4v&—%va%wj
k\EW%§$¥%E5FEﬁﬁ%V%NVJKEﬁL‘$%
%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%b&t%%%ﬁ%éﬁ%bé6&5%@@%@
IR HEATEVD ET,
it\?Z?A®ﬁéﬁﬁbibﬂi(ﬁiﬁvx?Aﬁ

10

Y
i
<
3z
X
B
B
i
s
=
s
S
&




. SHOBER (3

(MEBLEEATR
EMMZERREDL L1

EL LI ICHEE7

BETAIEICL BYH

QEEBELEBEEMBLUV
A RS R

GIHRKDRR

a ¥R DEE
SHAFATT BHRT
FEATERORE

b ¥E
c A¥E

B = % i
HASHBTEI-HL— MNEF
ERATESSASH
Rl FEAREB ‘
R LR A (%) !
=yt IRt 1
AAREHERIEESH
EEEGEREESH
ERREHRSH
BAME YN —TitBi5Ee
HASHER=HET
(%) B LASERBASH I
ML FRIAEIA2B%6
BRULTEY T, BEALE.
WaHiEs0(222, 713F 4 (BiRiEl

B [BESEFEED Y AT LBRI R EAFHE LT, IREE
B AT LTTFRIGE 4 BT TS, FOMOHNY AT AL,
ALERED O PR IGERI T TERSEA L TEV D 7,

EoIZ, JALIWV—T7D [4, ZLTEER] #H%E (BE
K) OBEREICERL T\ 72010, —BOBEREROIE
ILL BIRABOTEZHA %2 L 1 RIEEI 2L L. [FE DD
RzAIR] ZBELTEVD FT,

A4 DFE~ODHY MM DOEFTL TR, JALI V=TI
EoT, BEFTOEETH L [REERORSE) AT TE
BRI A D, HA—FE—EOEMTHECEEL, 5%
A2EEWOREEZBRLTIVY T, 705 EREHOE
Hrbb, TeEREHr—Bmfb L, &, 2F. F2, &
B BY, REL Vo BEREZEITHEDLLEMDAL ST,
JALZV—TEMA G0 TORE, #HED [ReRBEOK
FE k] ICERABORY#EAZ L TFNR) TF,

LHBIO[JALZ V=T &, U0k 2B A%

BLT, BLVWEELZREVEL, B, 2284LT [HRO+
VTITIA TN =T] #BfELTEVD T, FLTID
FEDREABRCT B 70O EBEICEIT LTV LS
L0 BEOEROTEIIBIEA LTIV Ve LT,
A%, L) —BOITHEEE SEAED ) $3 L) BEVE
LTS,

11




@) BEEREDIKR

FRMDPEHRE L UREREIITRE T 5720, Sithb, £
NOEFEUNDOBRNEDREEL LT, 51, 8UEHOELE

AEITVE L7,
¥ 72 FaEBO—EIc o &, 45, 898EMDERT %%
j ’?‘j:l/)i Lf:o

G)ERBAES S UMEDIKROHR

5 4 11
(PRNERE) | (PRI2ER | (TRIBER) | (TRUEE)
B (EHM) 3,176
. BRI (FHM) 40
§ LRI (HHM) ' 1
1“2@%%&9) 0.01

wAE (EHM) 619,604 i

gEE  (EHM) 289, 351 %

, :

! **f%’t;rg - 146. 24 Z‘

G2) M. YHFRTMOLD. FEURNCOVTORRIESY €A, §

12




A SO (LUFOBBE, BRI R VEY .,
2. SHOBER (L5280 e Bl uh et

(D EELEEART

SESWZSERTED L Uz ER T, MERERE.

272 5N UK 3 72 IBE T 2B T E TSRO T
RETSZ LI L LS OEEEHOIR - TR

QEFBLEEFRSLUVIG
At EREREXBE _THISE 1 5
(3R DIKA
a BRR DI
SHEDFATT ARRENDFREL 7,000, 000, 000%k
BATERA DRI 1,980, 465, 250k
b #%E 271,597 A
c A¥M=E
# F = FRAEME | EEE [ O HERIR | e
HASHaTIEa-FL— MET 88,611 T#k| 4.60% — %
HRaTEHGASK 80, 397 4.17 — —
HUl AR 70,000 3.63 — -
FRE LSRN SH(x) 52,390 2.72 — —
— b EAEEERHASI | 44,960 2.3 - —
BARLEGRBBEE ST 41,392 2.15 — -
FEEHRREESH 39,635 2.06 - —
ERERHRSH 34,627 1.80 - -
BAMz /- THEBRKS 34,402 1.78 — -
BASHBER=FIET 33,917 1.76 — —

(%) FEFB LA RBERSH . BBAEERBANSHE C 0 HABEE
EHL.FERGEL4IA2BEL> THEBHTHIB/ARHILT R -T2 TR
FRILTHY) T BHAB LRBERSHFTRISEI ANBICAFL TV
Wit (322, 713F 4k GRIRMELLE1.18%) THW T,

13




(4) BCHXOBE. MPES L VRS

a BE#K
HITREHRK O 12 L 2HUS
R 1,819, 097%k
BB D4R 462, 305FH
b AL #%K ,
SR 7 e —tk
WA D#EAR —H
CHRERIC B A EEHMR
SeRl N7 NaW 1,819, 097%k
G)HEEORR
HEEH(R) FHERB ) EHHHRER(E)
128 45.4 20.1

(3) 1. HHREEOS> 5124813, BAME, BAIT VAT LA SOHRETSH
V. PHEREREEHTODREREBEL TSN ET,
2. BASHBAME S X7 LAICHBEL 2%, #HNHELTWIAE (78)
BEFThTEIEHA,

14




(6)EBLLEBEORE

AaEELFRUDIKR
: & H#  F g X 2 ikt FELEERNT
BRMPHASH 188, 5§57('§FEJ 100. 8/0 EEXEE
MASHBRRLITY 27 23,486 100.0 |MExEs
_ | BRTP U THEMASH 4,310 '90.5 | MEExEg
‘ FR Sl 4,537 511 | MEEEES
BRAEHT L LI 1A X 3,000 100.0 | MEERER .
RASUT L 27270 5 800 00,0 | MEEREY v »
BEi7sa-sh 300 "60.0 | MTmERELE
eI - —-- 2,038 *63.0 | MR IEEE |
HASHI v AE—NZ 3,250 *100.0 | AIZRHRARGESE. MITE
HBRXEH T vibity - 900 *78.0 HRITE S ERE
BB T v VYT -X 80 *100.0 | HRTESLERT
BARH T v LRFAX 4,272 *90.7 gggggﬁ*"*“%
HASHIALUX 2,558 s0.1 | REZIER AR

GI) 1. %, PRI BB S CIEBRETT,

2. BASH T v Nt - ZE FRI4FI08 4 BRTHAS# S vibt—IL 2
2y R —2 & HEETFENLELE,

3. MRSHY v MY T - X FRUEIZR 2 AR THRSH Vv XF 1 XY
AT ENHEEENALE L, 4. FRISE4R 1 BICHASH T ¢
WA ==& LELL,

4, FRISE 4B 1 BICHARTHASHIC L > TEHHB S ket v v
NE—LZCHED BEREEOERMICHEN  MREH T v LE— LI, K
HOEEFEHICEVELE,

G e e LA W B R X A RN W B A B i 2

15

SRRt




bERLEFEBEDHAR
BHOBEEREOREIL, ROEBYTHY 7,

X 5 E1H
(FRVEE) | (FRI1I2EE) | (FRI13EE) | (FRI4EE)
BERE (BHM) 2,083, 480
BxHx (HFM) 15,840
WEAFIZ (BEAM) 11,645
14
LHIFI () 5.94
wvag @EFM 2,172,284
wEE @EFM 254,256
1R 7t
® & E M 129.68

() 4, SHMrRTHOLY . FELEICOVWTOERR S £HA,

DEBLEAL
BAKDET 2 LUOHR
g A % HEXBALES

: 7T SRR E
BARSEIRERT 154,00087F —FH —%
BREMATEI-FL— MET 25,310 88,611 4.60
B EHER=HET 24,705 33,917 1.76
HASHUF JET 23,540 10,834 0.56
E2PReE 10,956 - —
BAESRBIEESH 9,739 41,392 2,15
FREGRBREESH 7,000 800 0.0
ZREGERBEESH 7,000 527 0.0
DIARINE— FP—4— 5,956 — —
BEEESFRIEESH 5,500 39,635 2.06

16

i
s
a

L R

RS

of



() M & S UEER

L K & H oM ¥ B
e yis BEEREELE(CEQ)., RAREDL
R RALR | * T R | B mamtommk 1ox
. FABEETUY 27 VEBE, L&k
#EBEEHE, AV TFAT VR -
VAZERERRTRAR
REWHZR | B B E E|WEEzER
Wit E | F | HERE
WERBMHE | & & [ & |HREE ﬂﬁ%%?%%ééé
BB R % F W B AT |WRREER
"%" j’% E}Z ﬁ & [T 3‘5 ﬁ] AMECERE R, FEHHEY
R ER|IE B O f |ReS¥cESAREs, mEsm
%
O OB R | L 0 JEKER |ReRECESARML, FeuEy
B O it B T % |BEEBSIEE. RenaEy
i) ;’ﬁ;’ ®I= 7 % AVTIATVAER
Bl GEES) | TRE B & | IASHRSHRERGREIE R
By GEEs) | 8 T B | BARZRAKHAENGREM S
iy GERY)) | B e T | EEELCUHRBH RS
B GeEs)) | 3% # BB | AT A MRS
Eyﬁgg(;pﬁ@) B Kk 1= | RRBTESAASHARNGRE
EHEEZR G N OE F _
THEEXERIEK F B Z
THEITERIR F K Ok
BE 7= IR B E = | EFARERSHEBRER
B 7 R I E A | WEEIRARHARNGRER
BE z B A I M| eEASHERRRRTRRNGERIN

(3 DRBROSBAFRI.EHF B .BK CR.BEEIBERRE2EETS /2
ICESHBHABRBRTHUET,

(i) BEBOS BRUBAS LUBEBRERE . HRAEHOBEESCET 3mE0S
BlICBT 3 ERFBRE 1 BILED IHNEERTHY T,

B, PTREDRABIHLERLTOLBNTHY T7,

(A K 4 H oK X K
o7 % B E OB % | %2 RERLHESR
WO B B & ok M | WEEBSHEEEEDMHEL) R
i HERE
T 1% B | & B REEELTSNEE () BOHEH
nm R REBRF ¥ SEBUE
= g RERELHEZBEE (b %o%H
: anm i RILEXS SHRBBRE
O & BIM W I A | MEESEEE
BT R OB | M Fl 3| eeecEsaER

p—s
-3




3. REHRICEUASHORAICHET2ERLEE

1. %3, PR154E 4 A 1 BiC, BEOBS S EHIE2ER L
T, BAfZHASH L ), FIHOFEHTH - ptEHt
Vy - VABLUBRASH Y vy VW E X I NVIRDLLE
PR LA L . MFAHEUHoEETFS ez LEL
720 COFSHEBEESENC LY, BT ARFREHRRES
S A ommEeTIE 5 TR, AT 5 TR AL

e F L7z BB, IOFRHEBEENFIBT, AT
b ETo T, BHOEREE & UEARERS OB

13H 0 A,

2. 57 V=TT, RIBDEAL, 1 77 1FEEESTR
EEMRE (SAR S) DFEIC L b 7 ) IRE TR EBNE A,
20034FFZ HEAD EIFHEEER M ERGETE = . BRIORTE LY
BHTAHZ LW LE LI,

3. 87V — T i, BTEmS ot FEEEOMRIFY
Biy& LT, BeEflo—F bz #DTBH, F—t—)
SttichE, BHRY T VAHOBREERTAI L LW
7mLELBARIZIZ4 B 1 HOBERSH Yy vy 7—X
EMREH VY VA M=) - DOEMIEIEHKE, THET
12, BREHBEARLT VAT LAOFEHTHAIMEH Y =
A NI OVAHRE, BRREEY =4 P INVER, HRAEH
VA bIWKR, B UHAREHRSHOTEHTSH
BHRAH T v 7T =Y AT AN OB A KA S
HY vV VADPEVEY , BEEFEEELAET, Uy
INVYT =V AT LBREAH, EEY T — VAT LAHREA
i EEHEOFOMD ) F— VAR EEEET LI LI
B/ I i/ R N B el 2 I 7 o e ) 20 N RN
VibdsE, NS Y vV TNV, BERSH Y vV R IR
NMERR MBS Y vV b5V AMCERTATFETT,

FEERETIOLRRSED L UYRG. BREMRBOBEET VB TT

BYET,

18




g‘fg’j{jﬁﬁi (Fp15% 3 A31HHHE)

(Bfy . 55 H)

2 B o ® & & o ®

# B 2@ | M E | ¢ @& ;

1 % 8 & & 1 % 8 & f&

OB & HE & 67 ¥ kU & 451

EEXEEXRDNAE 392 FEAHEEHEASE 1,257 ;

| ERENFEHRHENE | 31,886 1ENBBRESEASL ] 31,886 ;

55 % 4L ' B 76 * L & 37 f:

BRIEH £ EE 6 FHEEABE 48 ‘

Z oMo nEE 1 ki ® Al 860 |

P o EOmOBAE | 38

I B = & 2\ B 34,581

(EEEEEE) (490 B =& & & ;

53 L 681 E W A & 295672 ;'

H5 A {55 :

TRERM 63 & & % 330, 253 |

(BB EE) (10) ;

DT Ry T 10 A X o &

, I & * £

# & %) |(585,898) ; :

T & # # 3| 289,851 & & & 100,000

FaEHSMHS| 205672 |0 B X & & 4 :

BRIERH £ & E 13 & & # 5 £ 100,000 ;

rofokE 360 TOMEARFRE | 89,801

FERRERSEE | 59,801

N 5 189, 801

TR

WHEI RS F & 11

= (9 BAUHFIR) | (11)

/I &t 586, 653 TE = B - g

N

m & E & & >

B v B 522 # oK & &5 289, 351

& 8 619,604 |  fff - AELE | 619,604 ‘
:%S
J

19




IBMETHEHE iz At <
\

(B 5FME)
g8 B & 1
, R ) SR - 3,176
% O S 3,176
Pl o2 o= & 2,987
% | o * £ = 388
£ BARRU—BERY 2,59
5 ® ¥ F % 188 v
R T S | S = 0
& %= O OFA B
it x 2 D0 % LA I
15 2 ¥ 4 B OB 149
o | ¥ % oA & 3
e B Y OB OB o 130
" EOMDOEEINE R 15
OB M % 40
R 40
EAB GRBECE %S 48
= N B % #® % m Al9
£ # F # 11
L8 % B 5 A % 11

20




...................................... ERCEIH

BEELSEHE
"""""""""""""""""""" (1) ﬁm&#@4ﬁgﬁﬁagmﬁ§
: Tt BEITE L 2 Bl
........... @ @gﬁﬁwﬁmwwﬁ& »
(3) %JEL%EUM&E%‘&
R WEEH (545R)

""""""""""""""""""""""" (4) ,\ Vi /Kpfo)f‘{f
ﬁﬂ%ﬂi@%#%zfﬁf_ LTWBERRT v 7loonT
9&@5_ I3 c'c;w) 9,
(5) n#?‘
ﬁbﬁﬁﬁkloffob 1,

2. BEXERRERF
() BESWIBTEABLD) HTTRFLIE) 2T,

2) FEHIIHT 5 EMEREE 32,2796 75
_____________________________________ | FLAITNT 2 B RE 2,0238 5
Faitiin s 2 Es e 295, 6726 5 M
%8, PRSEICIE, BENEBRICBVIRAREL LMt EATED

________ : (3) ﬁﬁ@mgﬁmﬁmrwzﬁﬁ AEHH

-------------------------- ‘ () RIEHES 39,4108 5

. o TREE ) i 00184
e 3 (ML SRR

(1) RWEFEIEIARBEY IR/ TTERLTBY £,
{2) ?"ﬁt@ﬂl@l%

= BRI 3176675 H
CES. G 5195 /A H
E,%EYEIU’S’#@HW!FS 5185 H

21




I3 U S

31 =]

£ "
() SPRL2HEOMS
= S U - 11,906, 107M

ChERDEBYMHS WAL T,

®OHB OB OB R 2% 11,906, 1074
2 ZoOEXFELONS
TOMHEXRHE 2 89,801, 841,015@

INERDEBNLR VAL T,

i) E] S
(1 #%iC>E 4 m)

T OB FRIR SRS

7,914,584,612H

81,887, 256, 4034

B2, HEHRA1,819097 5BV THELTHEY E T,

22

AVPRTAR

FEAA

NIV

L




a e

23

e




AELEES | BEASED A 1
2:n+nnJ§JA»m1Ei$ﬁ:=%§: Jﬁ?jg H

BT BEEANOEEHRES :

“FEC154E 5 A19H

| BASHARMZES 25 A .
: W @D | :
FH AR EEA :

GEUE cmer: B W H # @

GEUR smemts I B % — @ g

HBEREANL, HRASHOBERS T 2BE0EIZHT 3 %
BRI E2RFORECETE, BRAESHBEEME Y X7 2 OFK F
141082825 FH154€3F310ETOE 1 HELen i
DEFEEE, Tabb, BEEE, BREE. seRse (&
S SR 2 AR 2.) RUFIBASEE O HIBEEE (&5

S B AEAIRD.) ICOWTERE T o7, 2B, BEREER Y
WEHEECOWTEEONR L LSl T 28051, B
SERUVHBHMSCRREN TV 2HED ) 5 AHIEEOITEIC
ETCRBESTH B, OHEFERUHBBHAEO/EREIET
REHCH ), LEREAOTEIHL OV S FHESEL W
BRRME I NI 2ERLEHTALICH B, v
s LEEEANL, RPFECBWT—BICATRS LT 5NLES 5
¥ DEREICRP L TEERTo 72, BEOKMEL, LEXENCHE :

B FRERUHBEHEE BB BBOETH L VLY hOLEH % 3

o RIAZHL L2 ROT D, Bhd, SEZEBL LTibN,

R REEVRA L&A RO+ 0OBRFEL FITEEEIZ LT
: TORZRIEY OFME S oLkt LCOSEEER R EHTE

DEREFBREHTHIEREGATY S, REFEAL, EEOLER)

LTERERAD OO SBE 2 EREL B2 LI L TV2, 25,

COBEED, YEREADPVELBOCERL-FLHIIHT 25

EFEFEEATVS,

BEEORR, UBETEAOERIIROLBYTH 2,

(1) BEBERVERZTERT, BESRUSRIHEVSHOH
ERVEZORREZELLRLTVEbDERDS,

(2) HEHEE (SFCETAHSICB2,) 3. BESRUERIC
HVEHORIRETELLRLTWE L0 EED S,

(3) FIHMSFE, ESRUERIEEL TV LD ETH 2,
4) HWEHEE (KFHCETAHMIEL,) KonT, BENE
EITE O N A RHE RV, .
T, BEERESURBRINTVIBREERI. RBLUBOAH

OHENIHEBOREICEELEE 4+ RIZTIOCH 2,
SHELETEALEBEHE L oIk, ARATEORESE
KX DT REFEBRII L,

1> S

24




Iy
]

i

BERSEEHEE EX

BE & #% & &

LEARSL, FRI4AFI0OA2B»LPRISHEIAZIBITOEIHEE
EFCBIINBROBEOATLHLCEEER»OEEZNOEB X
UHROBEZY, BBRoL, FEEXHEELERL. LTO BV &
HEnLET,

. BEEK m%é@ﬁ&mﬁ%

FEEGR EEREVEOLEROFHE R IEEELOMEE 2 I
WET Didh, RERErLEEOHETENL, EEL2RRBRETHEL. ¥
BRIUMEBEORRZAZVZLE LA, FE&HovwTR, LERCEBL
TEENDHET KDDL LDNEBBIVHMEORR*FAEL., F&41
DEEERLBEBLIUVEROXBETVELL, ¥/, SHEZA2S
BEBIUHBEL ST, HEEEBIUVHBEHEZT I ERA Y MR F
L7,

PHEROFENS ., WHERLEHBMONEHREIWE . &S To 08
BOMELONBHRS, FARI A EBILOBANTHVEE 256
LECHRAORBBIUAFEIHLTR, LROEXOHFEDIED,
LB THREREPLOREL RS, YU ORA+EHRCAE
mLE L

2. BEEOER

1) 4HEEAFHIFEEEACEZNOFEBIUEREIMALATHZ L
E‘EbiTQ

2) EXHETI, EFBIUVERCEY, SHORREEL(RLT
WHELDEEDET,

(B MERGCHETHIERE. SHHEORKRLOMOEMFIZEBL L
BIREFHIZOOLNTEA,

() HWEHEEL. ERTREFERLZEL(RLTEY, EHT~2H
HREDHLNIEA,

(5) BERORBET M TIAALEDOTAETILIESL LIRERICE
KT2EAL2BEEIROLMTREA,

LB, EEORENG] BER L SHMOMBHERING], SH1T-72
ERORE LOFIRMES, FAU I -3HELOBBANTLVEE 2 6T
ECHADEES L URGHFII OV T RGROFHERIED SR A,

(6) FEHAEXOAR, UHFROBEZTICHLESTNIEHIAD

LNELA,
SERIS%E 5 A21A
HASHARNEL AT 4 BEXRES

s &N B R @
ruExE K HE B 2 @
woEEr B H X KX @
E xR REMTZ®
Ex % KILEA®
Ezxw WHAEE®

(F) EERHRUEABIUENERL, BASHOBEETSBTIHEORAICH
THERFIEE | RICED A HNBEERTHNE T,

1> S

25




[ZZEH]
BASITHAMZE Y A T LB REE
AAfZER S AR E
BHASH AL T ¥ AT A BRSNS
J ALYV — T ORTEMZHE
JALY V=T OERTIE, &

26




s

R B i

i

1. HASHARME Y X7 LEGAEHE

B SRR

(Fre154E 3 H3188HHE)

(B : BFH)

e A B AR GG Y P BARTL £ R SRR

' E 0o 0 0® a2 B o B
g B & & ;o8 B & &
1 W 8 & E I w & & 1&
B4 Kk US| 133145 O X L &| 204,557
SHEVRUEERRASL | 202,519 g o8 o A & 23,035
H O O #| 14,621 lEEREEMLE|] 67,495
i i Sl 78,424 L EREERESEAE | 127,537
RIEWESEE (E) 16,597 F* M o8 A B 5,320
Xa D fiz| 88,131 BB S B (gD 73
g5 8 5 & £\ 3,117 F ) fl| 187,327
/B gt 530, 322 N il 615, 346
I B & & E I A % B &
Tt &1 218,700
(EREEEE) |(,382,615) E 8 & A & 864,38
B EUCHBEY| 256,529 BB &AM % 4] 143,670
BHEBRUERE | 41,273 BRERSEEEE) 413
i zs B 915,938 % %) fiz] 51,988
+ H | 88,979 —
z = = .
gREEE B AR 1,279,158
& &4 1,894, 505
(EXEEEE) (53,127)
v 7 bwox 7| 49,820 |4 ¥ O F ¥ 4| 23,522
BEHEAEHE 306 : ‘
¥ o fg| 3,000 B = o &
‘ 1 &8 * =& 100, 000
(& %) (26,2190 & x &8 & & 147,175
REAMAESF, 77,03 M F %864 & 23,481
E 4 OB 4 & 1849\ ropsEdELE: & 780
RIEREEE(BE) | 41,503 | v semERgEs  |A 7,451
z 2 fie; 73,701 v 5 T % X |&a 8,168
g # 5 % £ 4o 4,528
7 B 1,641, 962 & X & F 254, 256
& . 12,172,284 & g 2,172,284
(i¥)
(VEREEEEORMEHN R4 1HE 1,661,854 AH
AERES
REET L 15,2075 7 H
RIEFHROBREREL TS LA 2,1338 7 M
HECEBET SN R A BREER L4y 30,0008 HH
(3)H TE _ ' L 19,863, 1264k

27




ERRSIHEE L

(B HAM)

#* B & : #H
¥ B ¥ W OB 2,083, 480
¥ FOOE OO # 2,083,480
B! B ¥ A H : 2,072,891
S = # | 1,661,421
2 » BRrRBRU-BREHRR 411,469 5
BB g ¥ A # 10,589
'; 18 IR AR 59, 249
=] TSRABRUVES S 2,932
! ¥ BAEID L A RERE 340 i
j 44 Z ) 1t 55,976
j o | # :
i m| % %25 R H 53,998
w | P X  # f B 34,657
& 5 B E # 1,975
% 2 fts 17,365
g 0w M & 15, 840
¥ 5l F # 11,999 3
%% B oE # E R B 4,446
o] REAMENTH R 4,623 ;;.;;
i T oMo % B R E 2,928
Bl @ om0 % 23,758
@ B e /B L S5 B | 982
il e & B & & B 7,304
Z O M o % Bl R K 6,600
BEeESHABM S AR 4,081
EAB, ERBERUBER 8,100
B A B % W % F 16,468
L% K EF R OB 804
e H L ) % 11,645

28




. BERMZEYZTLER FRBER
E Eﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ&w%Itt%%ﬁ
Eﬁ@ﬁﬂcﬁ?é$ﬁ

SH30THO ) BLRICRTIM S CITIHAEFOHHEIIEO LN TV 5,

HARMEHA ST
HASHBATT VA7 4
BE7 V7 mERRESH
BEFS ¥ A4 - v UREKRREHT
BAEHIr vy X
BRAEHI vV 7 AT A
AAI7a32—5 A4
HREHHT-U - -
HAESH I v Lb— 2
BEAESH T vty 2
BRAESHT v vy 7T —X
BRIy VAT N
Bt JALUX

HELRL, EEFSHTH oI v A V7 45 v 2 BRAEH L, BEESHIE
WFEH TR oz, BEOHB >R LESEERSHT L Lz, AL GERF
S THoTVzAF 1T 42742 0REHEZ FHREROBLIZL ) FE&3TE
{lpotefzd, BEOHA OBN LESEBRE&E LA, /-, REEFEHTH
5 7-COCOS LAGOON DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONIZ {2 Bt el |-\ S 80 & ) 38
HKOBHEPOBI L2, 8612, EEFE£HTH - 72 ALIVE INSURANCE PTE.LTD. #3
SRV AT T AHR be—H—EYRiF, BEEROBESL VELOHED LB LTV
Lo B, By — %) - AKRRESHRU, T4 V4 T ABE/RRST LB
I WEEDPERI LTS,

PR EETEHTHo TV 774 FVARREHEARIV—T 7714 F v 2
A&HE, B - AHREHEAGHL, HEEHRASH I v AT v EIA~EHLTW
Bo T2, WERSGEEBRULTH o LTRERF7 VNS, SRSV v kT
WAL AEET EZFIIE N EEFEHE LTS, 28, FRETAH THIHERS
# b Y =7 LR U JLC INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED % 4 F 241 E LTl b,

2. BSEOBRICHET 3%E
FESETRUIHRUBEERHIM D) b BRY — Y77 /) 0V - &7
EHTLHEBIIOWTE, FHETEAL TV, P
BEERL, Vg v 747y s AR ERARS, VAT 454 4V 7% P
I ABASTLERELRORDIHECRGETER, TREB T VAN ET A "
FTIE D ERFTFRAL~BITLTW S,

3. ERTSHOERFREFICHT2EH

#EFSH @ 9 1 PACIFIC FUEL TRADING CORPORATIONS 254113 8 HA12 A 31H
T& 1), JLC INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITEDIZ B B2 B28H Th 5 5, EikihE g
EOBOBESH MBI BEER R —RIIOVWTOALELBELXTI L LTS,

4. SEHLERE T SER s
(1) BELREEOFMEER CFHFE ) R
Qe EEE  FeLT, BHFHECESCEMECLHFEL TV 5, .
@F a3 Z OfeE % _ ) e

- BEOHEL0 FEHREOTRMESICED (EMmE: (§F
HEFEETEREAEILL YRE LT 5,)
CEDEHMEL T, T/, RHEMZEL

_ LTBHFYECIIAEL TV,
~EliozWwb 0 EE LT, BETFHEICES EBHEICLY
) i LT 5,
@FTUNT 4T BEEICLVFELTYS

SRS

29




(2) B A EORBMER
RERAE(FREBRRUTHBAL S0, SBEEE I EERE

SERYR CHTERER BARSERRAHRURRAHARIT VAT L EEE
bl EELTERE
B R E R

(3) BELS|LEOE LLHE

OB 4E - EEHOBBRTICR 5720, SHRICBIT2BRGBIELR
CEEEEORMECETEFEL TS,
-%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%i%u\I&Lfﬁﬁﬂ;%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁmﬂﬂt
Twh, :
- BHEEELOZERIZ, BRAELSRB LI LTISETERER
LHERMEL T3,
- BEEBEEL, ELLTZOREBIIERLETAIELLT
Wh, T, —HOBEFEHIE, FOREBORERDELE
FHBRBLAO—EOEMIC L ARSHELBAREL TV 5,

@QE#EY 4% CEHEDBENC X 2BEIE X Do, —REEIC OV TILEEIE
BEEICL ), BESSEESOENOREC OV TIEIRT RS
HEBEF L, BRERASELIEL TV A,

() EELARZORENIAROATEENOBREOLHE
AEIECHREERES, MEHOERABESICL Y NEICREL, BRE2EIE
BELTRELTWE, 28, INTFSHEOEERVER, Wﬁ&v%ﬁi&%ﬂ
DEDHEEMHICLVAGICREL, REAREHIVEREFSRUAROHIC
5 BEREREHEICEDTERIEL T 5,

(5) BER) - ABBI0LERE
FELT, V- AYEORERIEEIIBET 2 LEDLNLbOIDT 74 F
1%U~xﬂa ZonTi, BEOBBEBEIIEL FEICH L4 ABICE -
TV A,

(6) BELAy VEFOHE
BIEEAY VREIZL 5T b, %%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁéhfwéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%%k
W, REMBEIT o T b,
=) BRREOBHEBTERRAT v S0V TH, BPLEEZRALTY

o

(7) HEHZOAFNE
BiAR I o T 5,

(8) EAEHEFOIIEAT HHFE
BKﬁ”HTAﬁ&U&ﬁAHB$l7/XTAwﬁf X BRI
LEFEREFREIIDOVTIIRG T —0/7&%ﬁmttw

5. IBEBEEBXEE & DHEBERICEET 2518
EEREHECEIII O VTR, SEMNOBSEEHZIT-oTW5,

6. ERFRIHOEERVARKOFMICEHT 2R
BHEFRHORERUVAKOFEI OV Ik, 2EHEFEELRAL T

7. FIRLSEBEORRVICEAT 5EIE

BHERREHEEI, SYPICHE L BRSNS GEENE) TV TE
BE&hTwa,

8. X vvia -T7JO-EEZICBETIBELOEHE
HERUREREWIZIZ, BERUBEGE»S 3 » AUMIZEBESE%T 2 H8H0E

géﬁfiﬂﬁg%fﬁb‘#o\ﬁﬁ@%ﬁmowfﬁyauxatﬁﬁb&wﬁ%&
AFELTwA,

9. BELHEELOWE]

FL% Lo

30




ERLBRER
LyL— TR, BRROELL, 47/ EBOR

FMIRETEDNEH, 2003FE ORI
DNEATHEZEE LI,

31

IESHR SRR (SARS
BEEBREHGIE L, 490

)
gt

2]
i)

¥
&




2. BAMPHASHBERRERE

SE53HA B A ze
1 (4 : ~
é1ﬁ s(d';‘.‘g‘ie (FR15% 3 A31HBE)
(Bfr - BFH)
5 E 0 # T
# 5| £ 78 # =] & 4
1 i 8 & % I % 8 8 &
B £ E £ 69, 606 g ¥ Xk I %&£| 156,813
¥ kI A 4| 151,310 FEMEHEAE 6, 750
K. W T 17,788 1 EPRRERSEAS 27,606
Jisa 53 T 58,031 1 EWEREAHEREAS 1,815
S HEHEHR 6,178 1 FREEHE 61, 845
BEB L EE 10, 926 * FL A 24,987
FOMOFRERE 75, 841 *ILEANBE 29
g # 5 % £ A 148 * ¥ B H 33,650
B 2 | 25208
i h 4| 17,083
MEEAHEY £ 14,735
FOMORERE 14,192
PN 3t 389, 534 /1 &t 384,717
0 B € & E n 88 = &8 &
# &1 217,000

(FREEEE) | (836,818) £ B O A &1 286,983

# i) 92,598 HettRHAFEAE | 198,336
% % 7 3,702 BEHM L& 91,533
BOW % Bl 24,14 BRI ILE ] 10,1U4
i g e | 604,030 rofoBEA®K| 51,273
WOE O B 1,644 : z
TA%Af & 12,774 h il 855,321
+ #| 46,535 o
Bom R M | 5108 =R 1,240,039
L ‘ ® x o &
; s ’ " ¥ & 188,550
" F OO EE EEE 597 ’
! I X #HE &
#T’é ﬁﬁm %;@ (220, 640) HE oK O &1 32,516
% 3 3 55, 502 ;
Foaoa g k| orep |0 M E MA@
E MR f 4| 123 L E®®EE LW
EBumLE R 3. 265 AR EE R S 4,911
g B 51 4% £|a 1,718 i st 27,551
V BRAFFEEZEE L 2,598
b at 1,096, 525 "’ A G 5 246,020
= i 1,486,059 & it 1,486,059
32




N Pl R A

534 A AR

183

S

[¥&M$4ﬂla#g
FR154 3 ASIEE T

(gt : EH)

o | 3

g

e
W
M

q%m =
<t

Bk B

]
S BY b e 0

£l

W | 3 4
Sl
b
&

| |
2
s

S B
B4 S By Mok

o
2w | e
o ¢ 5

B

Sl | By

= 5
oS

A KB
oo =M

B2

S am

g
&
SR
1103 i
e
:EN&EQ
3 it e

i
H
g2t | g

ot

B
Bl
B | %

=R A
9

]HEX

!
m@ﬁ
B |3
;;g.
o R
s
s 3t
Bt BY B

X iy
>H:‘c~.]hlr

i B

,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ a
= W

m
e A 2
o
g
I B it K b

& b B

i
i il
by

0 1 e
a2

oy

L

LT

EAB. ERBEEOEED

i 7l

A N T

L 8 Kk o 5 7l

SIS 1 I

& &
1,233,898
1,233,898
1,233,100
996, 268
" 236,831
798
46,494
3,738
42, 756
38,922
24,274
1,053
13,594
8,370
8,234
3,994
e O
3,677 L
10, 080 Rt en
2,061
1,001
1,761
1226
5.028
6,524
333
412,527
18,717 =
20, 858

33




HE3AR AT ARLEE

BEEuSEthst

(1) ATEEROEHILNE B Ul 1 s
F At AR UBE S BETHEC L DR
Z DA BEOH5L0  TAMEEC L5

Sl S HARE AL
FEEMII BB T
BEOZVS O BERTFIHEIC L HEME
(2) mﬂ§ﬁ®4m§$&04mﬁ£ BEIFREC L B RIEE
(3) EE&E DB EA T &

iz
A (FTRRBIREEU)

EARE U R
TR ‘ EE
W B AR EERE S
ERHTRE L
() 3|%& 0t L
ERENEILE LKL B BRI S U S REORATI 8

sgtbLTshId
xuf%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ?%li ISETES LERREL TSN

j—

ﬁﬁnfﬁ_ﬁ@;g‘i FRELZEBY D ISETERREIC
WEHLEBLTBIET,

Lf@%%ﬁ& HERICERLETAZIELLTBN T

HE5IEe —ﬁifﬁ‘ffébiﬁﬁ |EZgEd, BERSEEFIRNTRTEL
A B L, BARERAEEARTELTBY Y,
MEREELTILE PEERIRLBES BRI B 700, BHAE
By EE R HBRERAEY HESFEREFINE (PR
14$65EEHUF€&E%287%0) 2EHBETHIIHE) & LTENE

T LTBYET,
3 (5) U —ARBOREHFE V- AMEOFAEISEEICBET 2 LEOLND LD
3 BNOT77AFYA U—xmﬂ owfm BEOBRME
: WENR A FERICELAAFARBILE > TE) T3,
: (6) ~vYEROHE FEIE LT, BE~y VHREIC iofi:ﬂ)i@“o
(1) HEHFOSFNE BEFRILoTH0ET,
(8) RTHBEOERE B IC BV T E OO EEHINE TS0 T B iR

iﬁ(é%4mﬁ§ﬁm)&U%GM®g%ﬂ§%b@w
oA B REER (L4, 6198 FH) 12, BBIEFICE
AMZLTERTHIEEL. %@@@5¥%§mk@
TERLTBY T,
- MERC BT L HEEEROBRDOMIIOVTH, BEMITHE CER4E4 A 1B
T OEBESE2E) ICLVERLTBYET,

2. BERMEBXRER
(1) EHRLEE. BANRBEYIRTTRRLIBY I,

EF\‘}

(2) FoftioHy 2 EHSHEE 75,3588 A H

Fattion T 2 EHSRIES 60,0018 5 H

Faiodd 2 RS HREE 5,3858

Fathiony 5 RS’ 43 187841 '

LB, LRAME . SERECBCIESBR LGB EATEIET,
(3) BEHIHT 5 EHEREE 6268 A H

oo+ 2 FReREY 2,0526 471

NI T A RASHREY 198,336B 7 H

R, LA, BEMERECBVIRSBRELSEEBATE) 2T,
(4) BAHHRS, 9635 A (17,300, 8458k) 14, AMAEHRIGINTED T,
() ARETHEEDRIMEDREFE 1,035,4438 5 H
(6) %ﬁ?%ﬁ%b:%ﬁtlﬁ:@mﬁﬁw&i# )L AEC L) A L’Cb\éﬁﬁ’“ﬁ%"#?ﬁ*

(1 EaiBECRERUVAR
HERDAE 25,6378 M (FMEC X AL 129, T31F K F v
Fottrst 28,488E F H (FHEIC L 284 150,526k Movl)
EERLE 20,3876 5 GHIZ L B8 %6, 872F K F Al
BB, EERONKEFREL TVA I EICED, AESOEHOFEEEY
ZWHDiIBRVWTBY ET,
(8) {BEBICHELTWRHE

34




At

Moz % 349, 6965 51
B o 75,9136 71
+ 37,6996 A
BRAmiEs 19,1076 5
F ot 2,901 E5H
BREE 1,383H 5
RS RS . 358,5758 5 9
RIETORCBEELES 50, 8745 /i
HERORBRIT | S LHIHABRESE 30,0008 75M
1k 7: ) 0 LRI 10508
BT EERF

ERSH, BEMRBLDIRTTRERLTBY 2T,
F&i e olsE

BRI 55,009 /i
BERL , 254, 018 5
EEIG | WSO 9, 7738 5
B ONGIE

EEITE 3SHHME
EXRA 2,234H 5
BENG WA OmEIE 289 7

35

i
¢

b
i
IS
H
i
i
oS
&
(S
B

H




3. MASHBARIT7 L X7 LEFREBE

FAHABELT T AT L
14X (H
éfﬁ j(‘j"q‘g\i (FH154E 3 B3l BEL)
(B4 J5HH)
' E o B 5 #F o 9w
# H & & e B & &
OB OB E 58,924 | B B & 125, 850
" £ - B £ 4,989 g ¥ x # £ 33,023
B ¥ ok W OA S| 23,48 | H OB B AN & 5,003
B Z # 18 | —EPLEEESEAS| 26,247
54 I3 o 17,057 —-ERRBEAHREEAE ] 30,071
BH O B B 2,579 —FEHNEETELE 5,300
BEW S B E 237 | * 3 & 7, 866,
Fofbw e EE] 1099 k # B B 5,103
g B 51 % £|&a 423 x* H EH BB E 2,244
Al % & 8,693
B E & E 357,279 | T ] & 1,594
(BEREEERE) (324,933)| ® % W & 111
& | 61,639 2 O bk B A E 590
G % Y| 1,111
B oW % & 6,204 | T & & 268, 884
i 7z | 251,081 # % 1,700
BHOW OE % B 823 E B & A 4| 129,168
I B 2 B # & 2,998 BaHEHHBAS 97,336
+ # 345 E 8 % # 4| 10484
B % K & = 729 O R E & 3,008
EBEREMSIZE 26, 835
(EFEEEE) (3,002) % EBEBBI Y& 351
V7 by oz 7 2,697
A = B 120 | & & & & 394,735
ER R ES
%@'ﬁﬂ,}f‘/[ﬁﬁgg 176 :é’ 7.‘?\ o %IS
& & %) (29,343) |8 = % 23,486
& & A B 5 #* 10, 059
F & 4 # R 2,04 | mAE &4 2,674
= AR E £ 7,976 | xR # B £ 2,674
E 8w i & H 2,592 '
wEHR S A E 495 HEHsL A 4,692
z o & & 1,763 | 4 8 ok 4L 338 % 4,692
O R B B8 PANS (3 b M HAEE) (4,692)
wIEE E B BAETFMmEHES 34
B % E= 33
"X & E 21,502
® E 4 & 416,237 B - BAEGE 416,237

36

B
v
o
3
&
i
£
&
S
w
=
g




AR ERIT AT A
= FHIEALR 1S
*E Ef%% FH154 3 A31A T
(Hfr - BHFM)

# =] & v

B 338,132

EXEA
HER 292,168 ;
ERBERU TR 48,318 340, 486

EERE 2,353
BENMEROE

EENNR 4
ZHHERVELE 114
FObOIRE 7,568 7,682

EENER
THFB 7,715
FOMDER 2,216 9,931

EEigk : 4,603 !
HRHER O
FERIFI &£

R MESTHR 155 155
B HE LS
HEHEER 1,622
EEEEKRIE : 1,539
P BA R A SRR 184
HoUREE 54 3,401

Bi5 AT 4R L 7,848
EAB. EEBEUEES 63
EANBEHEE A 3,219 :
LHARE 4,692
AT ER A2 -
W LT S 4,692

37




FAOKAEXIT7O X5 L EREIE
(BEELZ A5 HE]

1. 7z 2EVBEOIHAEER UMY % BHTH®EIC L 2 Bk
2. HMEEHOFFHEE & ORI _ ) i
TEMBARUEESHR  BEFHERIC L 2B EE
£ OB AL BioH 540 MIXBOWSEESICE
DBl GEMZERIL., S5EAE A E
%%2)&&@ L. THEMIBEESEICL
E
RO LV S O L BEITIEIC L B RMEE
s i S :

T

3. TINNT A TOFMENE R CFE
4. EZEREDOBRMEINFE N
AREERE EE
EVEERE EHE

L, v b7 (BHARE) tow

T, HRICBY 2 RAFB I REE (5

) ) £) #oK mﬁ&o
5. MIEEEDELFAE
AR FUAER GO LIEELIBRRURER
DEHBERCRLIIMBLEEL TS,
ZTOEEAFEL, BEORET 2 5 FHK
%%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁm%ﬁoﬁ&%ﬁerm

6. 5lL&nEt LK .
=gy FREOEHENILDBRIER L0, —
BERECOWTEIBEERZICL), B
BOEESHEOEEC OV TIRERICE
%g%g%ﬁ%L\@WK%%ﬁﬁ%%i
WWh,

BELAE L& TEEBOBRBIH IS S 720, BHIEKIC
B HEBRRHEBRUESEECETE,
. LERICBWTREL TV 2ELEELT
; Wh, 2B, REFEELTTERER (23,102
i BAEM) IZ2oWTid, 15 L 2808

BRMEL TS,
BHEELOERR, BHORERIIBT
%ﬁ%é@?ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ@—%@
8 (15F) KWIAEHEELIVES LR
%%h%n”i® EroBBLET S

Ll Twa,

E@ﬁ%@@i& R B [RER
By ENH] KET(ETREYEEL

vid,

=EIE-EAES ?73214#“&?.%%72%287%&/

‘ 2ITENT 55 LET

7. U A ORERE U—X%#@%E%ﬁgz WBET S LR
HONBLDLUSNDT 74 F A - 1=
BElicowTit, BEO0ERENEICES
HECELSMBIC L o Tw b,

8. ~Ny YSEHOFE BRIE LTHRIEANY YREIZL 5 TWA,

9. HEHEDIELE FRILLoTw

10, BHAIZ 813 5 BHH BROBROIBICOV T, BEMITRE (FR14%E4 5185

T BEBESE22T) CIVERL TS

RRERF L&

%Aﬁm“%

38




[543t HB %)

1. RRBELFE, BEAAXRBLONBTTHERLTV S,
2. FREHTS ERSREE 8,681H 7 M
mHegEE 6,651 & i M
3. Baticd e  EHEsEE 80F /7 H
HHeSms 30,2198 5 M
B EHR% 97,336 & /5
. THMEES) &, Baitirst (80,0043 18BAM) TH 3,
. AREEREORMEN R 277, 187871
LU -AZBIE Y ERTAEEEE  BEEUHBRRCHLLCETEEQER, Y-
AZIC L DER L TV 2 B L U
EFEERENFH 5,
7. BRIHEL TV EE
=24 51,847H /A

MR 1,346 5 H
i o mZE 139,898E G H
8. BAEMBRURITHE 344,390E 5 H
9. ERNHBORERUEMR ,
EBEROAE 1L,245AM GMERICX2E87,0377K ML)
FEHHA 555 FH (AMEIZ L B 2483, 00T i Fvh)
) BERILE 8668 M (4821 & 54287, 053F K FiLfh)
10, BREEEMEC L 0L -HEEDOE MEHsH
11, 1BR%7- b Mg % 214H384%
12. BEEDREE 4,692 5 H

SO

(HBEtEE)

1. REEHE, BEAMREEYIBTTRRL TR A,

2. FEUMLOWEIE
EENE 2,938 H
EXRA 45,7576 5 H
CELCI T 314EFHH

EEBE 5505 A M
EEIEIUAOBTIE 1485 /M-

3. BEML OB

¥

(BmiEH)
1. #E¥EHES

PERE, ERMMIE AT EAEARIEHE LTEER - EREB L U—RE
BRI ELTWD, FRUEEF LXHAMBHEITLE SN L I28E, LI
BOWTHRHBRUERE LW L 2o,

COFERLHIE, IHNRAMEER & K RUFRHOEIERS, BIaAABLS LTS
h. EEREL £EEd. BIFTYBEBLRIIOVwTIE, 342BEFHES LTV A,




4. JALTIV—TORREMZR

)
ERENE -

B OB B B AEEER " =
B747-400%! (RIEEA) 34 | 299~449/% 35 4KI3FES
B747LR-SUDE! (REIEBEH) 14 | 350~483[%

B747LRE (RIEgM) ‘ 12 {383~462/% 555 @ EEP
B747-400D%¢ (5GREBEAS) 8 | 568/% 55 3IIEEHEP
B747SR-SUDE! (JEREBEH) 2 | 563/%
B747SRE! (5GiEEA) 1 | 5338
B747F® (BWER) e | 10> BA115 > 55 3BIEEHES
INE 81 .
B777-200% 12 | 380. 389/ 55 2 B2 EED
B777-300%! 5 |470% SHELEED
B777-200ER%E! 3 | 302 3RE BEMSESP
(“hEh | (20
MD-118Y 6 |233~264F% 35 283 EHES
DC-10-408Y 15 | 264~318/%
A300-600RE! 22 {239, 292fF 5510 EE
A300% 14 - | 255~298f% 55 3 BIIEES
e | (36 i
B767-200%! 3 | 230/
B767-300%! 22 | 232~270% 38T EMES
B767-300ERE! 3 | 2378 3ELEES
(e | (28
MD-g0%&! 16 | 1665 35 3 EES
MD-81§ 18 163% 3 2?4%55@2:
MD-87%: 8 {134 3
e | (42 '
B8737-400%!) 23 | 150~167/% 5 B4 E RS
DHC-8-400%! 2 |74 28E HbEED
YS-118! 11 |64 ,
CRJ200%! 5 |50/ 5EEHEGH
SAAB 340BE! 14 | 36fE 55 7 BEIEES
JS-318 3 119 361 BEEESD
& F 286
40

ST e S A N gy ST



5. JALIIWN—TOXLTIE. B

EP AR, LR, R JIRE. WL, K, FR. EKH.
R, G, W', B8, B i, 2aE. &R
B, RE. KB, AL, B, L&, B, &S,
e, B, AL, IOFE, B, U, R,
REAR, Ko, B, BIRE, X, PR

I TT AT AR LR RE BB il KE, B,
. %, BE. T VoL, THY, =50 N
YA NI A KR—=FIVITALITIN T,
DR =N, VAN, TN Za—T)
—. A4, Y FZ— FYVARY F—=FFUF, £
ATT T3/ TV, THAATNVT A, Fa—1)k,
gyrFy N, XKY)=F, 35/, =%, 71—
YNV T—=N—, Za—F—7 THhHT, T ITUH,
Hr75 A3, A rEVA, FANRTA, 7TUh
VI, R®INVN, aF, AFTadTra, rooNga,
fit. &

T | TR TS, REBX TS i

41




& . M
Bk E X E
® B #8 B 3A31H
EHEIHES  6F
q e I
D eeney  3AuE |
BEBHBRBA  FEBTRHRAON—TE4E 35
UFHEStTHR &4t
A EHEREHR IR IEREDETHI0%E1 S (T137-8081)
@Bﬁ%g?;) UFIERUTHE S SERAATH
R EeE (03)5683-5111 (1% )
R B X B URVEERTHE ST &5
: B AI AUE 2 5 N AES TS
1 BT DE 1, 000%%
6 EERTHE BB TRAT 5 AREEEE

Qif: sememooxBEEEEALLET




